
 

MEETING AGENDA 

 
 

Wednesday, January 27, 2016  
                         Page No. 

8:15a  Call to Order – Russ Webb, Chair  
Roll Call 
Approval of Agenda 
Approval of Minutes             

 November 18, 2015               6 

 December 15, 2015             31 
Ethics Disclosure 
Review of Guiding Principles            35 
Current Bylaws              44 
          

8:30  Mission Moment 
   
8:45  Staff Report 
  CEO Update 
 
9:00  Statutory Advisor Update 
  Valerie Davidson 

Commissioner, Department of Health & Social Services 
 
9:45  Partner Update 
  Walt Monegan, Acting Commissioner, Department of Corrections 

Diane Casto, Deputy Commissioner, Department of Corrections 
 
10:30  Break 
 
10:45  Committee Reports   

Planning Committee            53 

 Criminal Justice Reform 
o Terry Schuster, Senior Associate 

    PEW Charitable Trusts – Justice Reinvestment Initiative 
 
 

Meeting: Board of Trustee 

Date: January 27-28, 2016 

Time: 8:15 AM 

Location: APFC Hugh Malone Board Room, 801 West 10th St, Juneau 

Teleconference: Jan 27: (866)-469-3239 / Session No:  806 028 945 #  / Attendee No: #  
Jan 28: (866)-469-3239 / Session No:  806 865 219 #  / Attendee No: # 

Trustees: Russ Webb (Chair), Mary Jane Michael (Vice Chair),  Larry Norene 
(Secretary/Treasurer), Laraine Derr,  Paula Easley, Carlton Smith 

1



 

Wednesday, January 27, 2016 
(Continued) 

             Page No. 

 
11:45  Approvals FY16 November Small Projects        54 

Small Project Application Spreadsheet          56 
 
12:00p Lunch On Your Own 
 
1:15  Assemble at Alaska State Capitol, Room #519 
 
1:30  House Finance Committee Presentation 
  Alaska State Capitol, Room #519 
 
2:45   Presentation 

Liz Medicine Crow 
President / CEO, First Alaskans Institute  

   
3:45  Committee Reports   

Resource Management Committee          59  
 
4:00   Committee Reports 

Finance Committee             60 
 
4:30  Recess 
 
4:40  Public Comment              42 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 

Thursday, January 28, 2016 
 

             Page No. 

 
8:30a  Assemble at Alaska State Capitol, Room #532 
 
9:00  Senate Finance Committee Presentation 
  Alaska State Capitol, Room #532 
 
11:30   Statutory Advisor Updates     

Denise Daniello, Executive Director 
Alaska Commission on Aging           61 

 
12:15p Lunch On Your Own 
 
1:30  Statutory Advisor Updates 

Patrick Reinhart, Executive Director 
Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special Education        75 

         
2:15  Statutory Advisor Updates 

Kate Burkhart, Executive Director 
Alaska Mental Health Board /     
Advisory Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse         84 

 
3:00  Adjourn 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

3



Future Meeting Dates 
 

Full Board of Trustee / Planning / Resource Management / Finance 
2016 / 2017 / 2018 

 

(Updated – January 19, 2016) 
 

 
Planning Committee Dates: 

 January 26, 2016    (Tue) – JUNEAU 

 February 23, 2016   (Tue) 

 March 16, 2016   (Wed) 

 April 14, 2016   (Thu) 

 May 18, 2016   (Wed) 

 June 15, 2016   (Wed) 

 August 2-3, 2016   (Tue, Wed) 

 October 20, 2016   (Thu) 
 

 January 5, 2017   (Thu)  

 April 13, 2017   (Thu) 

 August 1-2, 2017   (Tue, Wed) 

 October 17, 2017   (Tue) 
 

 January 4, 2018    (Thu)  

 April 12, 2018   (Thu) 

 Jul 31- Aug 1, 2018  (Tue, Wed) 

 October 17, 2018   (Wed) 
 
Resource Management Committee Dates: 

 January 26, 2016    (Tue) – JUNEAU  

 April 14, 2016   (Thu) 

 August 4, 2016   (Thu) 

 October 20, 2016   (Thu) 
 

 January 5, 2017   (Thu)  

 April 13, 2017   (Thu) 

 August 3, 2017   (Thu) 

 October 17, 2017   (Tue) 
 

 January 4, 2018   (Thu)  

 April 12, 2018   (Thu) 

 Aug 2, 2018    (Thu) 

 October 17, 2018   (Wed) 

4



Future Meeting Dates 
 

Full Board of Trustee / Planning / Resource Management / Finance 
2016 / 2017 / 2018 

 

(Updated – January 19, 2016) 
 

 
 
Finance Committee Dates: 

 January 26, 2016    (Tue) – JUNEAU 

 April 14, 2016   (Thu) 

 August 4, 2016   (Thu) 

 October 20, 2016   (Thu)   
 

 January 5, 2017   (Thu) 

 April 13, 2017   (Thu) 

 August 3, 2017   (Thu) 

 October 17, 2017   (Tue) 
 

 January 4, 2018   (Thu)  

 April 12, 2018   (Thu) 

 August 2, 2018   (Thu) 

 October 17, 2018   (Wed) 
 
 
Full Board of Trustee Meeting Dates: 

 January 27-28,  2016  (Wed, Thu) – JUNEAU 

 May 5, 2016    (Thu) – TBD 

 September 7-8, 2016  (Wed, Thu)  

 November 17, 2016   (Thu) – Anchorage – TAB  
 

 January 25-26,  2017  (Wed, Thu) – JUNEAU 

 May 4, 2017   (Thu) – TBD 

 September 6-7, 2017  (Wed, Thu)  

 November 16, 2017  (Thu) – Anchorage – TAB  
 

 January 24-25,  2018  (Wed, Thu) – JUNEAU 

 May 9, 2018   (Wed) – TBD 

 September 5-6, 2018  (Wed, Thu)  

 November 15, 2018  (Thu) – Anchorage – TAB  
 

 

5



 
Minutes for the  

November 18, 2015 
Full Board of Trustee 

Meeting 
 
 

 

6



 
 

 ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY 
 

 FULL BOARD MEETING 
 
 

November 18, 2015 
9:00 a.m. 

 
Taken at: 

 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 
3745 Community Park Loop, Suite 200 

Anchorage, Alaska   99508 
 

OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 
Trustees present: 
 
Russ Webb, Chair  
Mary Jane Michael  
Paula Easley  
Larry Norene 
Laraine Derr  
Carlton Smith  
 
Trust staff present: 
 
Steve Williams 
Jeff Jessee 
Miri Smith-Coolidge 
Kevin Buckland 
Carrie Predeger 
Carley Lawrence  
Amanda Lofgren 
Mike Baldwin 
Katie Baldwin-Johnson 
Luke Lind 
Vallette Keller   
 
Others participating: 
 
Kathy Craft; Donna Mong; Monique Martin; Patrick Reinhart; Nancy Burke; Chris Cook; Denise 
Daniello; Kate Burkhart (via Speakerphone); Diane Casto (via Speakerphone); Lori Grasgreen 
(via Speakerphone). 
 
 

7



 
PROCEEDINGS 
 
CHAIR WEBB calls the meeting to order and calls the roll.  He asks for a motion to approve the 
agenda. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL makes a motion to approve the agenda. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

CHAIR WEBB moves on to the minutes of the August 6, August 26-27, and October 21, 2015 
minutes.  He asks for any corrections. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR points out that on the August 6 meeting she was present.  She asks that be 
corrected.  She notes that on page 46, she was in attendance. 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that there is another correction around page 47, 48 that he was quoted as 
both making a motion and seconding it.  He believes that it was seconded by Trustee Michael.  
He notes the corrections and asks for any other changes or corrections to any of the minutes of 
the meetings.   
 
TRUSTEE DERR makes a motion to approve the August 6, 2015 minutes. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

TRUSTEE EASLEY makes a motion to approve the August 26-27, 2015 minutes. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

TRUSTEE EASLEY makes a motion to approve the minutes of October 21, 2015. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

CHAIR WEBB asks for any ethics disclosures.  He discloses that one of the first speakers is his 
wife.  With no further ethics disclosures, he dispenses with the review of the Guiding Principles 
which are in the packet and available on the Trust’s Web site.  He adds that the bylaws are also 
available in the packet and on the Web site.  He moves on, stating that he was informed about an 
extraordinary event that occurred in the Mental Health Court several weeks ago.  It reminded 

8



him of how important all the work that the Trust and all of the partners do.  He states that he 
invited Kurt Youngblood and Judge Stephanie Rhoades to make a presentation today.  He asks 
Judge Rhoades to introduce Mr. Youngblood. 
 
JUDGE RHOADES states that in 1998 the Trust funded a pilot project mental health court in the 
Anchorage District Court as one of the coordinated resources projects.  She continues that she 
has had the privilege of presiding over that court since then, which is a good example of the 
Trust’s catalytic strategy to build a comprehensive integrated mental health plan for its 
beneficiaries.  She adds that the court does need the Trust’s continuing advocacy for a 
comprehensive integrated plan to assure that this diversion court has the community resources 
needed to actually divert participants into it in order for the project to continue its outcomes, 
which are reduced jail and hospital stays for the beneficiaries in accordance with public safety 
and better quality of life.  She states that Kurt Youngblood graduated from Bartlett High School 
in 2009 and went on to attend the University of Manitoba and then transferred to Columbus State 
University, Schwob School of Music in Columbus, Georgia.  He began experiencing symptoms 
of mental health disorder in 2013 and eventually withdrew from CSU, returning to Anchorage.  
He began counseling at Providence Behavioral Health and was recommended prescribed 
medications, which he declined.  He returned to CSU and earned a bachelor’s degree, performing 
a senior recital.  He then began a master’s program but withdrew and returned to Anchorage in 
February.  He was living with his parents, became violent at home with a weapon involved and 
was charged with a felony.  He was admitted to API and received court-ordered medication.  She 
continues that he was released from API and entered the court in August where he earned a 
dismissal of charges for successfully following his case plan, which he continues today.  She 
states that he now plays at Brother Francis, Bean’s Cafe, elderly housing, and hopes that his brief 
recital will inspire the Trust’s hard work in the same way it inspires her. 
 
MR. YOUNGBLOOD states that he will play the prelude from Bach’s Third Suite in G Major. 
 
(Beautiful music played by Mr. Youngblood.) 
 
JUDGE RHOADES thanks the Trustees for their time, and states that she stuck to her 15 
minutes. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks if Mr. Youngblood would like to make a statement. 
 
MR. YOUNGBLOOD states that he had a great experience in the Mental Health Court, and 
thanks all for letting him play.  He adds that he wanted to play for the Trust.   
 
(Applause.) 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that the music was extraordinary, adding that the talent and courage of that 
young man is unbelievable.  He moves on and recognizes Jeff Jessee. 
 
 
 
 

9



CEO UPDATE 
 
MR. JESSEE begins with the rural outreach trip which just concluded two weeks ago.  He asks 
Carley Lawrence for a quick overview. 
 
MS. LAWRENCE states that approximately 32 people went to Nome, the hub community, from 
the 2nd through the 5th.   She continues that there were groups that also went to Gambell, Stebbins 
and Unalakleet.  There were various community conversations with providers and community 
members focused on how to build a community that is safe and healthy and also focused on the 
intersection between behavioral health and the Corrections system.  The conversations were 
facilitated and hosted by First Alaskans Institute, which was a different approach from what was 
done in the past.  She asks Trustees Michael and Derr to talk about their experiences. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL states that she got to visit Unalakleet, which was a very impressive, 
thriving fishing community of about 750 people.  She continues that they are very engaged in 
how their city is doing in terms of responding to the changing environment.  The city is on the 
coastline and has had six storms in the past nine years that have flooded the city.  They had 
federal help in building a rock wall along the beach and have built paved road up about three feet 
off the ground and are using them as water breaks.  She adds that they are also, over time, 
moving the housing up on the hill.  She states that they have a 100 percent graduation rate and 
have generationally inspired their youth to go to college.  In terms of beneficiaries, the challenge 
is the isolation of the community and having to go to Nome for medical treatment.  She 
continues that there is a need for housing and are trying to build a ten-bed assisted living home 
for seniors with Alzheimer’s.  They would like to see their elders stay in the community.  The 
Native tribe has provided the land for free and are actively involved in the design.  She adds that 
there is no funding to construct it at this time.  She states that it was a wonderful trip and was 
happy that the First Alaskans staff were instrumental in the visitations.  She continues that since 
they are Alaska Native, they helped to engage with people more quickly with their sensitivity to 
the culture.  She states that it is an incredible lifestyle and a wonderful trip. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR states that she went out to Gambell with five others, and it is sort of the 
antithesis of Unalakleet.  She continues that as trustees we have been told that dry villages work.  
Gambell is a dry village and their biggest problem is alcohol.  Several people mentioned that 
home brew is made at home.  In the school the teachers talked about the problems in the village.  
They said the biggest problem is the fact that kids come to school and fall asleep because they do 
not sleep at home.  The teachers have talked to parents and are told that the child is asleep by 
1:00 or 2:00, and that 9:00 or 9:30 is not possible.  She states that the village was not part of the 
ANCSA land settlement, and there is no tribal support out there.  The school is the center of 
everything.  She continues, when meeting with the people they would like to have funds to start 
an AA group.  That was their biggest need.  She adds that she gained a new perspective on the 
meaning of a dry village.  She continues that there is a bigger concern from the village to help 
itself get over the alcohol problem.  She states that the meeting in Nome was good and really 
appreciated going out to the village.   
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY asks how many legislators and staff went. 
 

10



MS. LAWRENCE replies that no legislators attended because the special session was called.  
She states that two staffers attended, and Jared from the Governor’s office.   
 
MR. JESSEE moves on and asks Ms. Lawrence for a quick update on the annual report. 
 
MS. LAWRENCE states that the annual report is in the process of having the concept and the 
content finalized.  She continues that she has a draft letter for Chair Webb to review now and is 
working on the other pieces with the program officers. 
 
MS. JESSEE asks Amanda Lofgren to talk about the housing summit.   
 
MS. LOFGREN states that the Governor’s office has a staff liaison, Elizabeth Schutz, for 
community affairs which has connected to nonprofits and religious organizations.  In her 
interviewing different community partners throughout the state, the theme she kept hearing about 
was services and housing, and so they started focusing on housing.  There is also a huge need to 
hold stakeholders together from a statewide perspective similar to what is happening in 
Anchorage.  She continues that the Governor announced that he will be hosting a summit on 
January 6, 2015 that will include the following focus areas:  housing in rural Alaska; land use 
and density; supportive housing; incentivizing private-sector housing investments; promoting 
independence for older Alaskans; innovative funding and financial options for investments; 
reducing recidivism through housing.  She adds that this will be kind of a large conversation with 
stakeholders across the state to come up with an action plan through the Governor’s office to 
address housing statewide.  She states that she is on the planning committee and working with 
that group.   
 
TRUSTEE SMITH asks where that will be located. 
 
MS. LOFGREN replies that it will be held in Anchorage at the new Alaska Airlines Center at 
UAA.   
 
TRUSTEE SMITH asks if he could attend. 
 
MS. LOFGREN replies that she will send all the information and get him an invitation. 
 
MR. JESSEE asks if anyone else is interested.  We will send it to everyone.   He states that 
Kathy Craft will talk about her efforts around the Department of Labor.  
 
MS. CRAFT states that the Department of Labor got three federal grants which focus on 
behavioral health and healthcare workforce.  She continues that she negotiated an MOA for the 
Commissioner’s office to pay for 15 percent of her time to work on navigating the health field 
and developing a health academy.  She adds that there will be a meeting on November 30 to 
discuss alignment of what the Department of Labor plans to do with the health workforce dollars 
and to make sure that whatever is set up is sustainable over time.  She states that information 
from the health workforce profile is starting to come in and that all the analytical data needed can 
be gotten for every standard occupational code with all the essential information. 
 

11



CHAIR WEBB asks if there was a way of getting things together without replication. 
 
MS. CRAFT replies that the problem is that there is some duplication between AVTEC and what 
AHEC is already doing.  She explains that everyone is getting together at the meeting and having 
a high-level discussion.   
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY asks about the state paying for mental health first-aid training.   
 
MS. CRAFT replies that there are some new federal dollars available, and the Alaska Training 
Cooperative is asking for help to write a grant for more mental health first aid in the state for 
youth.  She adds that information was received that the percentage of suicide or suicidal thoughts 
with Alaskan youth has grown.   
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY states that there is legislative support for that. 
 
MR. JESSEE moves on to Medicaid reformation, the 1915(i) and (k) waivers, and states that  
Ms. Lofgren will give a quick update. 
 
MS. LOFGREN begins that on the state options, the contract kicked off the week of October 26 
and there are nine statewide forums and community meetings engaging with multiple providers 
in each of the communities to understand this system so services packages for which populations 
can start being identified.  She adds that there are 11 tasks that the contractors will be doing 
between now and July 1.  She states that the Implementation Design Council is made up of 11 
beneficiaries from the state, and they are the only voting members on the committee that helped 
design the new 1959 (k) state plan.  She continues that the contract is also doing a review of 
regulations, review of current state operations, to identify internal capacity at both Senior and 
Disability Services and DBH to implement this.  She adds the eligibility and target populations, 
environmental scan of functional assessments, the service package, a quality assurance and 
implementation plan, and a provider manual as well as a cost impact analysis.  She states that 
those are the key components where work is beginning.   
 
MR. JESSEE asks for any questions.  There being none, he moves on, stating that another 
development in this behavioral health area is the certified behavioral health center.  He states that 
Ms. Baldwin-Johnson will give a quick update. 
 
MS. BALDWIN-JOHNSON states that the Division of Behavioral Health was supported by 
writing a competitive proposal to SAMHSA and CMS for the certified community behavioral 
health centers.  That grant was awarded.  She continues that the first part of that is a planning 
grant in the amount of $770,000 which will allow DBH to continue efforts on integration with 
behavioral health and physical health and move forward with selecting two communities to put 
out an RFP inviting community behavioral health centers to apply.  She adds that this is exciting 
because it is an opportunity to try out some different models and have a payment mechanism in 
place to do that effectively.   
 

12



MR. JESSEE states that one of the important things that staff does is gather all the MHTAAR 
status reports and prepare them to see if the money that is being spent is accomplishing anything.  
He asks Ms. Predeger to talk briefly about that process. 
 
MS. PREDEGER states that the MHTAAR status reports were due from the entities receiving 
MHTAAR funding on October 15.  There were 45 projects to review, currently in the reviewing 
process in preparation for the roll-up and performance overview that will be presented in 
January.   
 
MR. JESSEE states that the other thing is applying the results-based accountability, the RDA 
standards and process to the grants that the Trust gives out.  He asks Mr. Baldwin for a brief 
update. 
 
MR. BALDWIN states that staff has been working on the approach and on the information and 
the beneficiary employment focus area around the RBA.  He continues that, more recently, work 
has started on the retooling of the workforce area to address the Medicaid and expansion and 
redesign efforts, as well as criminal justice reform.  That is an ongoing process.  He adds that the 
general overview will be started and then an update of the rest of the focus areas. 
 
MR. JESSEE asks for any questions.  There being none, he asks Mr. Lind for an update on small 
projects. 
 
MR. LIND states that 15 applications totaling $135,000 came through on November 1.  He 
continues that the proposal evaluation committee will be held around the 14th of December.  He 
adds that there were three from Wasilla; three from Anchorage; three from Fairbanks; one from 
Kenai; one from Homer; one from Haines; one from Hoonah; and one from Ketchikan.  He states 
that they will be brought before the January board.   
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL asks if there is a way to review that and discuss them prior to the board 
meeting.   
 
MR. BALDWIN states that the Planning Committee is going to meet monthly. 
 
MR. JESSEE states that the small-project process will be synced up so it works with the 
committee meeting process.   
 
A discussion ensues. 
 
MR. JESSEE states that he had a conversation with Ms. Craft about the Division of Behavioral 
Health putting a tremendous amount of effort into another three-year RFP, which is a very time-
intensive and disruptive process for the grantees, as well as the staff. 
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY asks what a three-year RFP is. 
 
MR. JESSEE explains that the way the State hands out grants to community mental health 
centers is by requesting a proposal.  He states that the process of redoing these grants is huge.  

13



He continues that he talked to the deputy commissioner and thinks that there is a chance that this 
may be a continuation grant which will help a lot of people focus on some of this other stuff.  He 
thanks Ms. Craft for thinking about this on a larger level because it could really make a big 
difference.  He moves on that there was an administrative review of the Department of 
Corrections, which was not good news.  He states that Commissioner Taylor has resigned and 
Walt Monegan has taken over as interim commissioner.  He continues that there are copies of the 
administrative report if anyone is interested.  It has a lot of implications for the beneficiaries and 
may be worth some discussion.   
 
A short discussion ensues. 
 
MR. JESSEE states that there have been a number of presentations and discussions of the 
behavioral health systems assessment and the importance of that work, especially its implications 
for the future in terms of potentially seeing a way for a comprehensive integrated mental health 
plan to actually become a useful document.  He continues that the scorecard is the one piece that 
has continued to be used and is helpful.  He adds that with this assessment there are possibilities 
within that arena.  He states that there have been discussions over the last several years about 
whether the Trust needed in-house analytical data capacity to be able to do that work on an 
ongoing basis.  He continues that a preliminary draft job description has been put together for a 
position that is now called data analysis and planning officer.  He adds that it would be about a 
$150,000 position that would need to be added to the admin budget for ’17.   
 
A discussion ensues. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks if there is a motion to be made. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL makes a motion that the Full Board’s previous FY17 budget 
recommendation for MHT admin funds for the Trust Authority be increased by $150,000 from 
$3,612,000 to $3,762,000, and also recommend an additional PCN be established within the 
Trust Authority for FY17. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE seconds. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR makes a motion to table this until after the advisory groups are heard from. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

CHAIR WEBB moves on to the Planning Committee. 
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL asks Nancy Burke to give an update on the mayor’s announcement 
yesterday and to discuss the 60-day plan. 
 

14



MS. BURKE begins with the previous day’s press event around the mayor’s action agenda and 
explains the process of putting the homeless services plans that cover Anchorage together and 
how it came about.  She talks about looking at the continuum of services which is working with a 
community as a larger system that needs all of the components that the housing project needs, 
explaining all in more detail.  She states the need for services that work well in the community, 
and also the need for meaningful community integration.  She continues that the vouchers no 
longer have a homeless priority.  There is a need to look at where some of the resources are that 
can be pointed towards housing the homeless.   
 
TRUSTEE NORENE states that he is glad that the homeless and the shelter are stressed in the 
presentation. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH asks about the trend of migration into Anchorage from the smaller 
communities because of the impact the state deficit will have on those communities and if that 
has been looked at in the three-year plan.  
 
MS. BURKE replies no, there is no good handle on that.  She states that the rural connection is a 
very important one.   
 
TRUSTEE NORENE asks if there is any new need or resource available for better demographics 
for all populations.   
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL states that Anchorage Economic Development Corporation took the 
responsibility to do the demographics for the City, which is on the Web site.   
 
MR. BALDWIN states that the Department of Labor is another good source as they annually can 
update the census and the in- and out-migration.   
 
The discussion continues. 
 
MS. BURKE talks about initiating a conversation with the Department around looking at 
Medicaid’s use in the Downtown areas and will be starting some more intensive outreach there.   
 
TRUSTEE SMITH asks Mr. Jessee how the Trust can maintain visibility in this expertise role 
that is on loan to the Muni. 
 
MR. JESSEE replies that all are aware that Ms. Burke is from the Trust, and the challenge has 
been the ability to firmly identify her with the Muni at this point.  He states that the Trust’s 
visibility or involvement has not been diminished.   
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL comments on the incredible progress that has been made in two months, 
and adds that it will have statewide impact with a good precedence set for Housing First.  She 
moves on in the Planning Committee report, stating that there was a briefing from  
Agnew::Beck on the Medicaid expansion and redesign, and that Jared Kosin, from the Office of 
Rate Review, also participated.  She continues that the Trust funded $150,000 for the 

15



Alzheimer’s organization to initiate the conflict-free case management; the request was for 
$200.000.   
 
MS. LOFGREN states that they will be reimbursed at the current rate. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL adds that they will be coming back for some additional money to offset 
those costs because there was a timing issue.  She concludes her report. 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that next on the agenda is the Executive Committee report. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR asks for a break. 
 
CHAIR WEBB calls a five-minute break.   
 
(Break.) 
 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that all the Trustees were in attendance.  He continues that Medicaid 
expansion redesign was talked about which led into a discussion of developing a strategy for 
engaging with the legislators and providing them useful information in preparation for the 
legislative session.  He adds that the trustee nomination process was discussed, housekeeping on 
the January board meeting, staffing issues, set up a time to talk through some of the ambitious 
plans to engage, and had a couple of personnel items.   
 
TRUSTEE DERR states that in October the audit is reviewed and prepared before the 31st of 
October.  She continues that she did not see the audit on the agenda, and asks Mr. Buckland 
about that. 
 
MR. BUCKLAND replies that the audit has not yet been released.  He states that a meeting for 
the committee to review that audit needs to be scheduled.  He explains that the nature of the 
delay is twofold:  the implementation virus caused some delay; and the other item is GASB 68, 
which is related to net pension liabilities, which he explains in detail.  He states that a clean 
opinion is expected with the hope to schedule an Executive Committee meeting sometime in 
December. 
 
A short discussion on date availability ensues. 
 
CHAIR WEBB states the next item is the Resource Management Committee. 
 
RESOURCE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE states that there are several items to be brought forward.  The first two 
items are consultations:  one for Nikiski dealing with fire mitigation; and second is a mineral 
lease at Ophir.  He asks Mr. Morrison if there is anything to add to the information with the fire 
mitigation. 

16



 
MR. MORRISON states that the proposal is as it stands. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE makes a motion that the Resource Management Committee recommends 
that the Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with the disposal of timber through negotiated 
sales on Trust land near Nikiski. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

TRUSTEE NORENE states that next is the mineral lease at Ophir and asks for any updates. 
 
MR. MORRISON replies not in relation to the motion. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE makes a motion that the Resource Management Committee recommends 
that the Trust Authority Board of Trustees concur with the decision to competitively lease land at 
Ophir for mineral explorations. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE states that the assets on the Cushman Street building is in the packet, and 
asks Mr. Morrison if there is anything to add. 
 
MR. MORRISON replies that the Assets building, due to Trust and TLO regulations, is going 
through a separate path, and there is nothing to be done at this time.   
 
TRUSTEE NORENE asks about the Cushman Street building. 
 
MR. MORRISON replies that the Cushman Street building was adopted in a short meeting on 
October 21, 2015, and has an update in that regard.  He states that it was learned that substantial 
headway has been made with the bankruptcy trustee, and Trust involvement might not be 
necessary at this point. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE asks if there are any additional updates. 
 
MR. MORRISON replies that Dr. Karsten Eden, minerals and section chief, had an opportunity 
at the Alaska Mining Association convention on November 4 to give a presentation that was well 
attended and generated quite a bit of interest in Trustee assets, especially the Ophir block.  Based 
on feedback, there is going to be some considerable interest in the property.   
 
TRUSTEE NORENE asks for any questions.  There being none, he concludes the Resource 
Management Committee report. 
 
CHAIR WEBB thanks all, and moves to the Finance Committee report. 
 
 
 

17



FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH states that Mr. Buckland is handing out the basics involved in the attachment 
with the update and asks him to continue. 
 
MR. BUCKLAND goes through the packet and the budget reserves, explaining as he goes along.  
He asks for any questions. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR asks how the budget versus expenses is tracked.  Is it by the month or by the 
Trust meetings. 
 
MR. BUCKLAND replies that the reporting has not been built out yet and is related to the IRIS  
conversion, the $90 million systems replacement that the State of Alaska has been going through.  
He states that the reporting system is called ALDER, and the State does not have a consultant on 
board.  The hope is to have that reporting ability built out soon.   He continues that some reports 
can be run, but it is very cumbersome and not conducive to roll-up reporting.   
 
TRUSTEE SMITH states that the Finance Committee has advanced six items to the Full Board.   
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion that the Full Board approve the Finance Committee’s 
recommendation to suspend transfers of cash principal from the Trust Authority Development 
Account in the Alaska Permanent Fund Corporation through November 2016.  
 
MR. BUCKLAND states that the cash that is available is currently at approximately $17 million 
and, with the passage of this motion, will continue to suspend those transfers for another year. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

TRUSTEE SMITH states that the second item is Program-Related Investments maintenance 
authorization. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion that the Full Board approve the Finance Committee’s 
recommendation for an appropriation for $195,000 for program-related facility maintenance and 
operations.  The CFO may transfer up to this amount from the IRIS fund 1092 or 3322 in one or 
more transfers to the Trust Land Office and/or third-party property manager at the request of the 
TLO.  These funds do not lapse. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

TRUSTEE SMITH moves to the third item, which is a proposal for a culturally responsible 
embedded social and emotional learning project for the Alaska Association of School Boards. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion that the Full Board approve the Finance Committee’s 
recommendation for a $100,000 FY16 partnership grant to the Association of  
Alaska School Boards for the culturally responsive embedded social and emotional learning 

18



project, contingent on an award of U.S. Department of Education Innovation Fund 13 program 
funds.   
 
TRUSTEE NORENE makes a motion to table the motion and take it up later. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH asks Trustee Norene to share what further study would accomplish. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE states his concerns that this is an educational thing rather than related to 
mental health. 
 
MS. BALDWIN-JOHNSON explains that this would strengthen the prevention and incorporate 
more of the social/emotional learning into the schools and into the folks that are working with 
the youth in these rural communities.  She states that it would expand the capacity to be able to 
prevent some of these youth from becoming beneficiaries because of many of the experiences 
and situations that they are exposed to.  She continues that it is a worthy and good project to 
support. 
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY states that if this money was going to Anchorage, she would oppose it.  She 
continues that the fact that it is going to rural Alaska where alcohol is a very serious problem, the 
presenter made a strong case for the prevention aspect of it.   
 
The discussion continues. 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that this project is teaching school district staff, teachers, and others how 
to deal with kids who have suffered trauma.  It is helping them understand how to deal 
effectively with kids who have suffered things like child abuse and to better assist those kids in 
making educational progress and overcoming the challenges of that trauma.  After reviewing the 
project, he concluded that it is a project that is designed to help teachers to do better with kids 
who are either already beneficiaries or about to become beneficiaries.  Each of the school 
districts have committed money to it.  He adds that it is a worthwhile project, worth the 
investment and intends to support it.     
 
The discussion continues. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL seconds the motion to postpone. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

MR. JESSEE states that he is not clear on what additional information is being looked for in 
regard to this. 
 
CHAIR WEBB understands that the key issues to be addressed were in gathering further 
information:  the relationship between this project and the student outcome study; the 
relationship to cultural aversion programs; the perceived value of this to the districts in terms of 
high teacher turnover; how will this be sustained; and is it viewed as posing more additional 
duties that will inhibit rather than promote teachers in carrying out their primary mission. 

19



 
TRUSTEE NORENE requests an opinion from Commissioner Hanley with the concerns 
expressed.   
 
MR. JESSEE states that this would come back up at the Finance Committee meeting in January.  
 
The discussion continues. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH moves on to the next item, a partnership application, Eklutna Clinic 
Community Center.  The organization is the authorized Native Village of Eklutna. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion for the Full Board to approve the Finance Committee’s 
recommendation for $55,900 FY16 partnership grant to the Native Village of Eklutna for the 
Eklutna Clinic and Community Center. 
 
A discussion ensues.   
 
CHAIR WEBB calls the vote:  Trustee Easley, yes; Trustee Derr, no; Trustee Smith, yes; Trustee 

Norene, no; Trustee Michael, no.  The motion fails. 

 

TRUSTEE SMITH states that the next item is also a partnership.  The proposal is a life house 
community health center construction project.  The organization is Southcentral Foundation on 
behalf of the Chickaloon Traditional Council. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion that the Full Board approve the Finance Committee’s 
recommendation for a $75,000 FY16 partnership to Southcentral Foundation on behalf of 
Chickaloon Traditional Council for the Life House Community Health Center construction 
project.   
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

TRUSTEE SMITH states that the last item is a partnership grant, the acquisition of the John 
Thomas Building.  The organization is RurAL CAP. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion that the Full Board approve the Finance Committee’s 
recommendation for a $125,000 FY16 partnership grant to RurAL CAP for the acquisition of the 
John Thomas Building at 325 East 3rd Avenue, Anchorage. 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that there is a record of the Full Board meeting where this project was 
considered and acted upon; it was approved at that time.  He continues that there was a 
discussion at that meeting about the process of vetting and approving those things that raised a 
number of issues that need to be followed up on.  He asks Trustees Smith, Michael and Norene 
to participate as a subcommittee and come up with ideas on how to restructure the process to 
address issues that were discussed at that meeting. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH moves on to the topic of asset allocation, RFP.  He states that he and  

20



Mr. Buckland have spent some time on that, and the last RFP was 2013.  Mr. Buckland has 
reduced the draft to about eight-and-one-half pages with three focus areas.  They are:  whether or 
not going forward the percent payout is going to be enough for the demand that is seen in the 
near term; second would be how to address the impacts on State services that will be felt with the 
budget deficit and how that will impact what the Trust will be able to match; third is what is 
being looked for in this new asset allocation is a fresh look at the asset allocation.  He adds that 
all the trustees will be provided a copy of the draft, and he will be meeting with Chair Webb on 
it. 
 
MR. WILLIAMS states that he has a document that has proposed future meeting dates.  It 
includes the additional meeting dates for the Planning Committee for 2016, and then it projects 
out the 2017 and 2018 meeting dates with the committees and Full Board.  He asks that all look 
at it and check for any conflicts before he gets it out to the partner boards and others. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks for any other comments or questions.  There being none, he breaks for 
lunch. 
 
(Lunch break.) 
 
CHAIR WEBB recognizes Denise Daniello. 
 
ALASKA COMMISSION ON AGING 
 
MS. DANIELLO states that she is executive director for the Alaska Commission on Aging and 
appreciates the opportunity to provide a report of the activities and recommendations as they 
relate to senior Trust beneficiaries.  She begins by describing the Commission’s role with regards 
to Medicaid expansion and reform efforts, and what has been learned from seniors regarding 
Medicaid reform.  She states that the Department has embarked on this significant transformation 
project of Alaska’s Medicaid program and has four primary goals for this project:  First is to 
improve enrollee health outcomes; to optimize access to care and make sure that people are 
getting the right care at the right time and in the right place; to drive increased value; and to 
provide cost containment to conserve the General Funds dollars to insure a quality, sustainable 
Medicaid program for now and the future.  She moves on, sharing the results of a series of 
forums done at senior centers regarding the Department’s Medicaid reform efforts.  She states 
that they would like to see improved access to health care information because Medicaid is 
complicated.  Many seniors expressed concern about the health care workforce and also 
expressed the difficulty in getting medical appointments in a timely way.  There is also concern 
about the shortage of geriatric health-care workers and doctors that supervise in geriatric 
medicine.  She explains and goes through some of the suggestions made by the seniors to 
provide incentives and motivations for students to enroll in geriatric health-care training.  She 
states that the National Alzheimer’s Association has said that Alzheimer’s disease is the most 
expensive disease in America because it has a very long duration.  She continues that the goal of 
the national Alzheimer’s plan is to effectively treat and prevent Alzheimer’s disease by 2025.  
She continues her presentation, providing the recommendations and suggestions for updating the 
Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Plan, going through all in great detail.  She states that 
updating the comp plan is a huge process and endeavor, and a lot of questions come to mind.  

21



She shares some of the questions, beginning with the need to have a current analysis of services 
and service gaps for each beneficiary population.  She states the need to mobilize a comp plan 
steering committee with the comp plan playing an important role as being the Web-based 
headquarters for all these different planning documents that are out there that relate to Trust 
beneficiaries.  She continues with the need to have action strategies.  There are results areas, 
goals and indicators, but no action steps.  She adds that the State Plan for Senior Services and 
ADRD roadmap have action steps, and the State Plan for Senior Services also has performance 
measures.  She states that in order to develop an implementation plan there is a need for a set of 
strategies, dates, agencies responsible for implementation, and then have a report of those efforts 
on a regular basis to show progress.  She moves on and shares a few items regarding their 
legislative priorities; the most important being preserving the safety net services for seniors.  She 
continues that a reauthorization of the Alaska Commission on Aging will be sought because it 
will be up for sunset on June 30, 2016.  She adds that if legislation is not passed to reauthorize 
the Commission, it will go away.   She states that the ADRD stakeholder meeting will be held 
tomorrow from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.  The purpose of this meeting is to reconvene the partners 
to review the roadmap and to talk about the progress that has been made.  She continues that 
Governor Walker has recognized November 2015 as Alzheimer’s Disease Awareness Month and 
Family Caregivers’ Month in Alaska.  She adds that there are two executive proclamations to 
promote more awareness about Alzheimer’s disease and the importance of early diagnosis.  She 
reports that the Division of Public Health will include a perceived cognitive impairment module 
in this year’s Behavioral Risk Factors Surveillance Survey.  The findings from the 2016 survey 
will be used in comparison to those gathered in 2013 to expand the knowledge about 
Alzheimer’s disease and other perceived cognitive impairments in Alaska.  She thanks the 
National Alzheimer’s Association for funding that effort.  She states that Commissioner Rolf 
Numme from Wasilla resigned and the Boards and Commissions have been alerted to the 
vacancy.  She invites all to the next board meeting on December 9, 2015.   
 
CHAIR WEBB asks for any questions. 
 
A short question-and-answer session ensues, followed by a discussion.  
 
MS. LOFGREN states that a new terminology of perceived cognitive impairment  is being used 
for mild cognitive impairment, which is associated to the related dementias with a significant 
risk of that turning into Alzheimer’s disease later in life.  She clarifies this, stating that perceived 
cognitive impairment is the new lingo for mild cognitive impairment, which is significant 
impairments in cognitive and functioning that impair the activities of daily living that is 
associated with a related dementia that has a high statistic likelihood that it would turn into 
Alzheimer’s disease.  She adds that dementia is more like a symptom, not always necessarily the 
disease.  Alzheimer’s is a specific disease within that. 
 
CHAIR WEBB thanks Ms. Daniello for her presentation, and compliments her on her thinking 
regarding the comprehensive plan and the approach to it.  He asks for her perspective on the 
Trust adding a position to focus on these kinds of things that were talked about. 
 
MS. DANIELLO replies that it is a very complicated issue because she can see it so many 
different ways from the perspective of the Trust beneficiaries who need services.  She states that 

22



they may not understand how adding another staff person would be an appropriate use of Trust 
funds because they need services.  She continues that, on the other hand, data is the real driver to 
policymaking.   
 
CHAIR WEBB recognizes Patrick Reinhart. 
 
GOVERNOR’S COUNCIL ON DISABILITIES AND SPECIAL EDUCATION 
 
MR. REINHART states that the Council just got through with the new council appointments 
process for the Governor’s Office.  He continues that the number of council members was cut 
down from 28 to 23, which is a significant savings of money for the council for this next year.  
He goes through the appointments and reappointments.  He goes through the staff updates, and 
moves to the Medicaid expansion, explaining the reform.  He then states that the Council is in its 
five-year plan process.   He continues that they are in the midst of trying to do forums around the 
state, adding that all that input related to the areas of concern will be put together into the draft 
state plan.  The hope is to have that out by March, 2016, and then go through a process of 
reviews and have it sent to the feds by June, 2016.  He states that the Medicaid Ad Hoc 
Committee has been busy on the waitlist draw reduction that SDS talked about, and they are 
monitoring and providing feedback as that new policy is implemented.   
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY asks about the DD register and what CMS and the State are requiring. 
 
MR. REINHART replies that the decision to decrease the draw by 200 per year down to 50 per 
year was the financial decision made by the Department based upon the Legislature’s reduction 
of unallocated funding to the Department.  He states that next is a process of preparedness which 
will then be submitted to the CMS.  He continues that this is basically a decrease in the number 
of people who get pulled for a waiver.  He explains this in greater detail. 
 
MS. LOFGREN states that the regulatory changes would need to be included in the renewal 
applications that SDA submits to CMS on a five-year basis.  That waiver renewal needs to be in 
effect by July 1st, meaning that it will be submitted to CMS for initial approval this spring.  She 
continues that this is one of the complicated issues in terms of looking at the 1915(i) and (k) state 
plan options.  State plans cannot have waitlists, and it has to be statewide.   
 
MR. REINHART reports on the early intervention committee and then moves to the state 
education committee, state education advisory board.  He states that special ed is in the state 
systemic improvement  plan and a parent handbook on transition which also related to 
employment is being put together.  He talks about the Autism Ad Hoc Committee, and then 
moves on, continuing going through his presentation.  He gives a quick update on Employment 
First, stating that a very successful meeting was convened defining the reporting mechanisms, 
the needs, and the data sets to do it effectively.  On FASD Awareness Day 173 people attended 
the Anchorage event and 20-plus vendors.  This event had some TV coverage, which he shares. 
 
(Video being played.) 
 

23



MR. REINHART states that there is a new telepractice committee with the idea of being 
involved in different ways of saving money not only in assessments but in the kind of services 
that can actually be provided via telepractice and not in person.  He asks for any questions. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks for some feedback on what the advisory boards want to see in terms of the 
comprehensive plan process. 
 
MR. REINHART replies that he concurs with Ms. Daniello and recommends that gathering the 
overlaps would be a great job for a graduate student to look at.   
 
CHAIR WEBB thanks Mr. Reinhart, and calls a break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR WEBB recognizes Kate Burkhart. 
 
MS. BURKHART states that she is the executive director of the Alaska Mental Health Board 
and the Advisory Board on Alcoholism and Drug Abuse.  She continues that, for the fall update, 
three topics were asked to be presented:  Medicaid expansion reform and redesign; the impact of 
reductions of FY16 budgets; and the Comprehensive Integrated Mental Health Plan.  Before she 
begins, she states that this morning Trustee Derr had stated that Gambell wanted to start an AA 
group and were uncertain as to how to go about that.  She continues that starting an AA or an NA 
group does not take anything more than two people; and according to the literature, a coffee pot.  
Startups are available from the international organization.  AA and NA groups are supposed to 
be self-sustaining, which is why Alcoholics Anonymous does not take public funding.  It is part 
of their philosophy to be self-sustaining.   She adds that if there is a contact person in Gambell, 
she has startup kits in the office that she can share with them.  She can also connect them with 
folks in the region that might be able to mentor them in establishing a chapter.  There is also a 
community in the state that does AA through Skype.  Seldovia provides that service in the off-
season because there are not enough people for a group when all the fisherman leave.  She moves 
on to the second item, Trustee Easley asked about the use of mental health first aid efforts in the 
state.  She explains that those are being supported primarily by a $9 million federal grant the 
Department of Education and Early Development received last year; $1.8 million a year that 
allow four youth mental health trainings in targeted districts, as well as statewide.  She states that 
if there are communities interested in having that training, either she or Sharon Fishel at the 
Department of Education and Early Development can be contacted.  She adds that there are 
resources available outside of the targeted school districts which are Anchorage, Mat-Su, and 
Kenai.  She moves on to the conversation about creating a more robust structure for  
trustees to review projects for funding.  She reminds all that in the recommendations for the 
FY17 budget, the Mental Health Board and ABADA did make a recommendation that the four 
advisory boards, the Commission on Aging and the Governor’s Council be provided the 
opportunity to review and make recommendations on all requests for IMPACT funds, and not 
just the requests for recommendations in the annual mental health budget small project grants.  
This was brought before the Trust in August.  She starts her presentation with the boards’ efforts 
around Medicaid reform and redesign.  She states that as the Commission on Aging and the 
Governor’s Council reported, the Mental Health Board and ABADA have had stakeholder 

24



engagement opportunities related to both the home- and community-based services reform effort 
and the more comprehensive Medicaid redesign.  The focus has been on connecting with actual 
Medicaid recipients and their families and caregivers.  There have been opportunities to have 
conversations with providers, but the primary focus has been the people who receive or are now 
eligible to apply for Medicaid services and what they say would enhance the quality of the 
services received.  She adds that there were conversations in Juneau, Anchorage, Fairbanks and 
Mat-Su that were targeted to Medicaid reform and redesign.  She goes through the structure of 
the meetings and the questions asked.  She states that some of the things coming out of these 
conversations are aligned with the initiatives that are being considered by the steering committee.  
She adds that some really good ideas are also coming out of these talks.  She moves on to the 
reform effort around the 1915 state plan options and the large redesigned steering committee 
with the hope to be able to provide a more comprehensive look at what is happening from a 
variety of perspectives.  She states that they work with the Division of Senior and Disability 
Services to insure that representatives from the constituency are participating in the Consumer 
First Choice Council.  She continues her presentation, explaining as she goes along.  She states 
the hope that more of the folks connect to services for which they are eligible because of their 
participation in the different outreach methods.  She continues that one of the examples of the 
impact of the state FY16 budget is that there is a situation where there is heightened awareness 
and desire to address issues around opiate abuse and overdose and death, but funding for 
substance abuse treatment is flat.  She explains in greater detail.  She continues her presentation, 
explaining as she goes along.  She states that supportive housing opportunities are in the plan 
with the hope to support implementation of the supportive housing plan put together by the 
consultants from PAC.  She moves on to the basic needs, beginning with food security and the 
need to anticipate that food banks and food pantries will continue to see increased demand, 
which will have a great impact on beneficiaries.  She states that public assistance has to do with 
the heating assistance program.  The funding at the state and federal level has been reduced, and 
when that runs out, that is it.  She states that eligibility for heating assistance is greater than 
eligibility for Medicaid and is a higher income standard.  She goes through the funding available 
and moves to the impacts around the budget and how they influence the beneficiaries, explaining 
as she goes along.  She states that the recommendations related to the comprehensive plan is to 
look at what the planning councils and various departments and organizations have already done, 
pull the elements that are related to beneficiaries, and distill them into something comprehensive.   
She continues that the way to insure that the comprehensive plan is a document that reflects what 
beneficiaries need and help guide the decision-making would be to review all of the plans; 
identify the goals and strategies relevant to Trust beneficiaries; and consolidate the duties 
relevant to these goals and strategies. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks for any questions or comments.   
 
TRUSTEE SMITH states that he would like to help facilitate and be involved with supporting 
AA groups in smaller communities.   
 
CHAIR WEBB thanks Ms. Burkhart, and recognizes Diane Casto representing the Department 
of Corrections. 
 
 

25



DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 
 
MS. CASTO states that there have been a lot of changes in the DOC in the past 72 hours; 
Commissioner Ron Taylor resigned and Walt Monegan became the Interim Commissioner.  She 
continues that part of the Commissioner’s departure was a report from the Governor’s Office that 
was an administrative review requested to look at the recent deaths at DOC over the last few 
years.  She adds that it is available online, along with recommendations.  She states that all of the 
supervisors from both field probation, institutional probation, COs, superintendents, assistant 
superintendents, and executive staff met for three days in Palmer.  The title of the training was  
“Successful Re-entry:  The Way Forward.”  She continues that talked about was how to move re-
entry forward; how to do a better job of engaging staff, inmates, partners; and looking at the 
critical areas that need attention.   She adds that the new commissioner is on board with the 
direction and will be supporting the re-entry efforts.  She states that town hall meetings within 
the institutions started a few months ago.  The meetings are with the inmates, and there have 
been two done at Palmer Correctional Center, Anvil Mountain Correctional Center, and Lemon 
Creek Correctional Center.  She continues that these meetings are eye-opening opportunities to 
talk directly to the inmates and asks about what works for them and what is needed from staff.  
She adds that what was found is that substance abuse is a huge part of the prison system, 
especially in terms of how to continue to move forward and make sure that people are successful 
in re-entering communities.  She states the need for more substance abuse assessments, 
treatment, after-care support, both inside, as well as when transitioning out, and then back in the 
community without supervision.  She asks Steve Williams if he has anything to add about his 
experience attending one of the meetings. 
 
MR. WILLIAMS replies that he was at Anvil Mountain’s gym with over 100 folks and seven or 
eight of the commissioners from the Alaska Criminal Justice Commission in front.  He states that 
everyone raised their hand that there was some sort of addiction or substance involved with the 
crime they were being held on.  He continues that when asked what they needed, the reply was 
residential treatment, access to treatment inside and outside in the community.  He adds that of 
the individuals there, only a handful were women.  The discussion would go back to issues 
around historical and cultural trauma that have been experienced by generations of these 
individuals that are contributing factors to their involvement to where they were in that moment 
in time.  He states that it was something that he knew intellectually, but to see it in the room 
hammered it home. 
 
MS. CASTO moves on to the community re-entry conditions that are going on currently as the 
result of the generosity of the Trust giving $500,000 to that effort.  She states that there are four 
communities that applied for and received $100,000 each to hire a coordinator and begin the 
process through a community assessment of their services needs for returning citizens.  She 
continues that the coalitions are going through the process of looking at the available inventory 
of services and then looking at the gaps.  She adds that the four communities funded are 
Fairbanks, Mat-Su, Anchorage and Juneau.  She continues that Bethel, Dillingham, Nome and 
Kenai are either restating re-entry coalitions or are considering investigating in the process.  She 
states that the whole goal for re-entry is to be prepared, have resources, services and a process 
ready for the handoff from the institutions into the transitional phase and then into a community.  

26



She notes that the second thing is that the community needs to be reminded that folks are re-
entering every day with a plan and an actual way forward to make sure they are successful.   
 
MR. WILLIAMS states that he and Katie Baldwin-Johnson are working with the DOC to make 
sure that the forward movement does not stall.  He continues that, going back to Nome and Anvil 
Mountain, the trustees are aware of the work on rebuilding a continuum of substance abuse and 
mental health services for the region.  He adds that if there is a mental health crisis going on at 
Anvil Mountain, there is a contract in place so they can contact Norton Sound Behavioral Health 
to provide that service.  He talks about the possibility of restructuring this to provide continuing 
opportunities for success.  He explains this more fully and appreciates the people in the 
leadership positions at DOC in helping the Trust in facilitating of this.   
 
MS. CASTO shares another quick success story from the Nome trip and states how helpful the 
rural outreach trips are.  She continues that on December 3, APRN is doing a community and 
unity event entitled Successful Prisoner Re-entry.  She adds that there will be a live panel talking 
about a woman out of Hiland Mountain who has re-entered the community and following her 
success; also an art show, and it will air on Alaska Public TV, December 8.  She states that this 
program was started by Justice Dana Fabe, and was incredibly successful.  She asks for any 
questions.  
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY states that Bethel, Dillingham, Nome and Kenai were mentioned and asks 
if there is anything the Trust can do to help. 
 
MS. CASTRO replies that right now they do not have coordinators and are not quite ready for a 
funded position.   
 
CHAIR WEBB thanks Ms. Castro, and moves on to Public Comment.  He states that he will take 
public comment and asks for anyone to come forward.  There being no one at this time, he 
recesses public comment briefly.  He states that there are two issues that need to be addressed 
and begins with the matter of the embedded social and emotional learning project.  He 
recognizes Kate Baldwin-Johnson to address and answer the questions that were asked this 
morning. 
 
MS. BALDWIN-JOHNSON states that there is a timing issue.  The US Department of Education 
is finalizing their awards on December 22, and the determination of Trust funding is probably 
necessary sooner than later.  There is no option to wait until January on that.  
 
TRUSTEE DERR asks about the notice of award. 
 
MS. BALDWIN-JOHNSON replies that notice of intent to award was received, but is contingent 
on demonstrating the match. 
 
MS. GRASGREEN states that the intent to award is contingent upon a 15 percent match for the 
project, and adds that they have been diligently working on that.   
 

27



MS. BALDWIN-JOHNSON states that this award is one of seven out of 1300 applicants and is 
highly competitive.  It is an opportunity to bring close to $3 million into the state of Alaska for 
rural school districts. The Trust funding is 50 percent of the 15 percent required match.  She 
continues that she has a copy of a letter of support from Commissioner Hanley in favor of this 
project.  She adds that there was some inquiry about engagement and involvement of tribal 
entities, and has discovered that there are many ways that the tribal entities are actually engaged 
in this project.  She goes into that in more detail.  She states that First Alaskans Institute was a 
partner on this project, and were written into the proposal with both in-kind and direct funding to 
contribute towards the match.  Each region is also looking at identifying the industry partners.  
She adds that those were the key updates.   
 
TRUSTEE DERR states that the award is three quarters of a million dollars over the three years 
for evaluator and only $30,000 for trainers.  She asks that this be explained. 
 
MS. GRASGREEN replies that being partners with the American Institution of Research is the 
reason for being chosen.  A part of what these 13 intervention groups focus on is placing those 
improvements within schools and figuring out how to translate the evaluator points, which is 
very important.   
 
A short discussion ensues. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks the wishes of the board regarding this project. 
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY asks if there is a motion. 
 
CHAIR WEBB replies that the motion earlier was a Finance Committee motion, and that it was 
tabled. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR makes a motion to take it off the table. 
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY seconds. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks if there is an objection to bringing the original motion to the floor. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

CHAIR WEBB rereads the original motion:  The Finance Committee recommends the Full 
Board approve a $100,000 FY16 partnership grant to the Association of Alaska School Boards 
for the Culturally Responsive Embedded Social and Emotional Learning Project contingent on 
award of U.S. Department of Education Innovation Fund 13 program funds.  He asks for any 
objections. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE objects, stating that the timing, the event of more federal money, was not 
enough to convince him that this is a priority enough for the Trust.   
 

28



CHAIR WEBB calls the vote:  Trustee Easley, yes; Trustee Derr, yes; Trustee Smith, yes; Trustee 

Michael, yes; Chair Webb, yes.  The motion is approved.  

 

CHAIR WEBB moves back to Public Comment. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
CHAIR WEBB recognizes Julie Davies from the Alaska Brain Injury Network. 
 
MS. DAVIES begins by thanking the Trust for the generous support of co-sponsoring the fourth 
annual Alaska Brain Institute that was held November 4-6 in Girdwood.  She also thanks the 
Trust for offering support to the DJJ which allowed many of their staff members to come and 
participate in the event.  She gives a short report, stating that there were 100 participants from all 
over the state who, for three days, got to hear from experts in brain injury and the co-occurring 
mental health issues that come with that.  She continues that the event ended with a local woman 
sharing her story of surviving and living with a severe brain injury.  She states that up to 17 
CEUs were offered for this conference, and there will be a follow-up with two webinars for the 
participants to complete their training.   
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL asks where she could refer a young person who has just experienced a 
brain injury. 
 
MS. DAVIES replies that she could call the Alaska Brain Injury Network and ask for Julie. 
 
MR. BALDWIN states that ABIN has done an awesome job, and appreciates working with  
Ms. Davies. 
 
CHAIR WEBB thanks Ms. Davies, and asks for any other comments.  He states that a written 
comment was received from Faith Myers and asks Mr. Jessee to talk about the e-mail received 
regarding the capacity of API and where that stands, and some of the changes that have occurred. 
 
MR. JESSEE states that API is down another psychiatrist and the census of API is restricted to 
45.  He continues that some people will be discharged from a couple of units, and they will not 
bring in any additional people until the medical oversight problem is solved.  This medical 
oversight issue is becoming more common and more problematic. 
 
CHAIR WEBB states that having only 45 of 80 beds in a hospital that was underbuilt to begin 
with means that there is an absolute crisis, which is unacceptable today.  He has asked Mr. Jessee 
to set up a meeting with the Commissioner and the Deputy Commissioner of Health and Social 
Services as soon as possible to engage in a dialogue about how to solve this crisis. 
 
A discussion ensues. 
 
CHAIR WEBB moves on, stating that there was a motion on the table to raise the admin budget 
and fund a new position.  There has been a good bit of discussion about that and he comments on 
it.   

29



 
A discussion ensues, explaining the situation in depth. 
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY makes a motion to go into executive session. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

(Executive session beginning at 5:33 p.m. until 5:43 p.m.) 
 
CHAIR WEBB calls the meeting back into session.  He states that there is a motion before us 
that has been made and seconded. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR asks that the motion be read again. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL states that the motion is to increase the Full Board’s previous FY17 
budget recommendation for MHT admin funds for the Trust Authority by $150,000 from 
$3,612,000 to $3,762,000, and also recommend an additional PCN be established within the 
Trust Authority for FY17. 
 
CHAIR WEBB calls the vote:  Trustee Easley, no; Trustee Derr, no; Trustee Smith, no; Trustee 

Norene, yes; Trustee Michael, yes.  Motion fails. 

 

TRUSTEE DERR states that she would like to see budget figures and the job description and the 
write-up of what this actually is.   
 
MR. JESSEE states that he will distribute the draft, and then if there is a desire to have another 
round of discussions with this that a meeting can be called.   
 
CHAIR WEBB asks for a motion to adjourn. 
 
TRUSTEE EASLEY makes a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
TRUSTEE DERR seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

(Full Board meeting adjourned at 5:47 p.m.) 
 
 

30



 
Minutes for the  

December 15, 2015 
Full Board of Trustee 

Meeting 
 
 

 

31



 
 

ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY 
 

SPECIAL FULL BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 
 
 

December 15, 2015 
5:33 p.m. 

 
Taken at: 

 
Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority 
3745 Community Park Loop, Suite 120 

Anchorage, Alaska   99508 
 

OFFICIAL MINUTES 
 
Trustees present: 
 
Russ Webb, Chair 
Mary Jane Michael  
Paula Easley  
Larry Norene (via Speakerphone) 
Laraine Derr (via Speakerphone) 
Carlton Smith 
 
Trust staff present: 
 
Steve Williams 
Jeff Jessee 
Miri Smith-Coolidge 
Kevin Buckland 
Carrie Predeger  
Carley Lawrence  
Amanda Lofgren 
Mike Baldwin 
Katie Baldwin-Johnson 
Luke Lind 
 
Trust Land Office: 
 
John Morrison 
 
 
 
 
 
 

32



PROCEEDINGS 
 
CHAIR WEBB convenes the Full Board to take up the two recommended actions coming from 
the Finance Committee.  He states that all Trustees are either here in the room or on-line.  He 
asks for the first motion. 
 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL makes a motion that the trustees direct staff to hire a data analysis and 
policy planning officer for FY16 using the currently vacant program officer position, and seek 
OMB approval to hire a long-term nonperm program officer for FY16.  Further, the trustees 
approve a $150,000 addition to the Trust admin budget for FY17, increasing the admin budget 
from $3,612,000 to $3,762,000. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH seconds. 
 
TRUSTEE NORENE states that since this came from the Finance Committee, no second is 
needed. 
 
CHAIR WEBB agrees, and states that the motion from the Finance Committee is on the floor. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 

CHAIR WEBB moves to the next motion. 
 
MR. MORRISON asks for a few minutes to write out the motion. 
 
CHAIR WEBB calls a break. 
 
(Break.) 
 
CHAIR WEBB calls the meeting back to order and recognizes Carlton Smith, Finance 
Committee Chair. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH makes a motion that the Finance Committee recommends that the Trust 
Authority Board of Trustees concur with the creation of a new permanent full-time position for 
program-related real estate management for FY17 and beyond.  Funding for FY17 will be 
absorbed by the accrued TLO budgets. 
 
There being no objection, the motion is approved. 

 
CHAIR WEBB recognizes Carley Lawrence. 
 
MS. LAWRENCE states that she was successful in finding a date for the reception to celebrate 
the 20th anniversary in Juneau.  She continues that it is scheduled for February 17, 2016 at 5:30 
p.m.  She adds that the Governor and First Lady Walker are hosting at their residence.  She adds 
that she will send out an e-mail reminder. 
 
CHAIR WEBB asks for any other business.  There being none, he asks for a motion to adjourn. 

33



 
TRUSTEE MICHAEL makes a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 
TRUSTEE SMITH seconds. 
 
There being no objection, the Special Full Board Meeting is adjourned. 

 

(Special Full Board meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m.) 
 

34



 
 

The Trust’s 
Guiding Principles /  
Mission Statement / 

Trust Budget 
Process Flowcharts 

 
 
 
 

35



 

 

Trust Guiding Principles 
 
 

 
 
 

To improve the lives of Trust beneficiaries, The Trust is 
committed to: 
 
Education of the public and policymakers on beneficiary needs; 
 
Collaboration with consumers and partner advocates; 
 
Maximizing beneficiary input into programs; 
 
Continually improving results for beneficiaries; 
 
Prioritizing services for beneficiaries at risk of institutionalization 
or needing long-term, intensive care; 
 
Useful and timely data for evaluating program results; 
 
Inclusion of early intervention and prevention components in 
programs; 
 
Provision of reasonably necessary beneficiary services based on 
ability to pay. 
 
 
 
Approved 5-12-09, Board of Trustee meeting 

 

36



 

 

Trust Mission Statement 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority (The Trust) 
administers the Mental Health Trust to improve the 
lives of beneficiaries. Trustees have a fiduciary 
responsibility to protect and enhance trust assets in 
perpetuity for the beneficiaries. The Trust provides 
leadership in advocacy, planning, implementing and 
funding of the Comprehensive Integrated Mental 
Health Program; and acts as a catalyst for change. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved 5-12-09, Board of Trustee meeting 
 

 

37



Trustees 

 MHTAAR Operating 
(Mental Health Trust Authority  

Authorized Receipts) 

Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Budget Process 

Authority  
Grants 

Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority  
Staff Recommendations for Ongoing Projects 

Requests for Recommendations 
Outside Focus Areas 

Focus Area  
Budget Recommendations  

Partner Boards:  Governor’s Council on Disabilities & Special 
Education, Alaska Mental Health Board, Advisory Board on 

Alcohol & Drug Abuse, Alaska Commission on Aging 

Alaska Brain Injury Network Stakeholder / Public Input 

Focus Area Work Groups:  
Housing and Long-term Services & Supports, Beneficiary 

Employment & Engagement, Disability Justice, Substance Abuse 
Prevention & Treatment, Work Force Development  

State General Funds  
Mental Health Budget  

(GF / MH) 

MHTAAR Capital 
(vehicles, long-life facilities, research / 

demonstration projects, 5 years to spend) 

Governor’s Office  
Office of Management & Budget  

(OMB) 

Alaska 
Legislature 

(Legislative Finance) 

Mental Health  
Budget Bill 

02/06/2015 38



Annual Mental Health Budget Bill Process

June - July 
•Trustees issue Request for 
Recommendations (RFR) for the 
next fiscal year 

•Partner boards prepare RFR 
budgets 

July 
•Focus Area Workgroups prepare  
budgets 

August 
•RFR budgets due to COO 
•CFO prepares budget spreadsheets 
•Finance Committee hears partner 
board and focus area proposals for 
budget recommendations 

August - December 
•Trust coordinates with 
Commissioners and their 
department directors regarding their 
funding requests for the next fiscal 
year 

September 
•Trustees meet to discuss partner board and focus area budget 
recommendations, and approve budget recommendations for the 
next fiscal year 

•Budget recommendations sent to Governor, Office of  
Management and  Budget  (OMB) and Legislative Audit (due 
Sept.15) 

September - December 
•Governor approves or modifies 
budget and sends to Legislature as 
Mental Health Budget Bill (due 
Dec. 15) 

January - April 
•Legislature in session  
•Trust works with Legislature on 
budget  recommendations 

•Mental Health Budget Bill adopted 

May 
•Trustees approval final budget for 
next fiscal year 

02/06/15 
Note:  timeline represents those items in the green boxes in the chart entitled 
"Alaska Mental Health Budget Process" 

39



Partnerships

Focus Area
Funding

Allocations

Small
Projects

Trust
Administered
Mini-Grants

Conference
Sponsorships

Emergency
Grants

A Letter of Interest is
submitted from potential

grantee to The Trust.

Trust Program Officers and
focus area work groups
recommend a specific

allocation from a focus area
fund level project annually.

Applications are due July
1st, November 1st and

March 1st. Requests are
limited to $10,000 or less.

Applications are submitted
monthly.

A Letter of Interest is
submitted from potential

grantee to The Trust.

The potential grantee
submits a letter requesting

emergency funding.

Trust Program Team reviews
the Letter of Interest. If the
Team finds the proposal

eligible, the grantee is invited
to submit an application

Finance Committee reviews
the application and can
approve up to $50,000.

Requests over $50,000
must be approved by the
Full Board of Trustees.

Funding from annual project
budgets can be designated
throughout the year. If the

request is less than or equal
to $50,000, the CEO can

approve.

Applications are reviewed
by a staff Proposal

Evaluation Committee

Final staff recommendation
must be  approved by the

Full Board of Trustees.

Applications are reviewed by
the Proposal Evaluation
Committee and awarded

monthly.

The Program Team reviews
the Letter of Interest.

CEO makes final decision on
funding.

The Emergency Request
Panel is convened within two

weeks to determine if the
request qualifies.

If the request is for $10,000
or less, the Emergency

Request Panel can approve
the funds.

If the request exceeds
$10,000, it must be

approved by the Full
Board of Trustees.

Finance Committee can
approve requests greater

than $50,000 because
Trustees have already

approved the money at the
Fund Level.

[Revised:  10/01/15]

Note:  this chart depicts those items included in the blue box labeled
"Authority Grants" on the chart entitled "Alaska Mental Health Trust

Authority Budget Process:

Grant Approval Process for Authority Grant Funds
All annual budgets are approved by the Full Board of Trustees at the September Meeting

40



 

 

Trust Annual Calendar 

 
JAN 

 
FEB 

 
MAR 

 
APR 

 
MAY 

 
JUN 

 
JUL 

 
AUG 

 
SEP 

 
OCT 

 
NOV 

 
DEC 

Board Administration             
Trustee reports due to APOC – 
Mar 15 

  xx          

Trustee committee 
assignments 

    xx        

Officer elections         xx    
Board evaluations          xx xx  
CEO evaluation           xx  

             

Trust Administration             
Legislature convenes xx            
Trustees present budget to 
House/ Senate Finance 
Committees 

xx xx           

Legislature adjourns    xx         
Request for Recommendations 
(RFR) issued to partner boards 
April 30 

   xx         

Fiscal year ends June 30      xx       
Fiscal year begins July 1       xx      
RFRs due from partner boards 
July 30 

      xx      

Advocacy Summit           xx  
Staff drafts Trust office budget 
for next fiscal year 

       xx     

Staff coordinates w/DHSS on 
budget 

       xx xx xx xx xx 

Trustee meeting to approve 
next fiscal year budget 

        xx    

Trust budget recommendations 
due September 15 to 
Governor/ Legislative Finance 

        xx    

Financial audit begins       xx      
Financial audit completed          xx   
Staff coordinates with 
OMB/DHSS on budget 
recommendations 

         xx xx xx 

Trustees meet to finalize 
budget 

          xx  

Governor’s budget released 
December 15 

           xx 

 

04/17/15 

41



 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES 

WHEN?  The Trust bylaws call for a public comment period during all regular meetings of the Full Board 
of Trustees. See page 2 of this document for the relevant bylaw.  

 Full Board meetings usually are held in late January/early February, May, September and 
November. Public comment typically occurs at the close of the first meeting day. Public notice 
is issued for all meetings. Meeting information and agendas are posted on The Trust’s website 
www.mhtrust.org.  

PURPOSE? The public comment period allows individuals to inform and advise the Board of Trustees about 
issues, problems or concerns. It is not a hearing.  

PROTOCOL?  Individuals are invited to speak for up to three minutes.  
 A speaker may be granted the latitude to speak longer than the 3-minute time limit only by the 

Board Chair or by a motion adopted by the Full Board of Trustees. 
 Participants addressing issues relating to Trust beneficiaries will have priority order. 
 Speakers are not permitted to criticize or attack others.  
 Anyone providing comment should do so in a manner that is respectful of the Board of Trustees 

and all meeting attendees. The Board Chair maintains the right to stop public comments that 
contain inappropriate or inflammatory language or behavior. 

FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 
How can 
someone 
provide 
comments? 

IN PERSON - please sign up for public comment using the clipboard provided by Trust staff 
during the Trustee meeting. 
VIA TELECONFERENCE – please call the meeting teleconference number on a telephone hard 
line. To prevent audio feedback, do not call on a speaker phone or cell phone. You may use the 
mute feature on your phone until you are called to speak, but do not put the call on hold because 
hold music disrupts the meeting. If this occurs, we will mute or disconnect your line. 
IN WRITING – send comments to the address or fax number below or email 
steve.williams@alaska.gov. Note that, if you wish your comments distributed to Trustees prior to a 
meeting, all comments should be received at least two days prior to the meeting to allow time to 
distribute them to Trustees.  

Where is The 
Trust office? 

The Trust Authority Building is located at 3745 Community Park Loop in Anchorage.    

What is the 
call-in 
number? 

Complete dialing instructions and the call-in number are posted on our website. Find the meeting 
under current upcoming meetings and click on the link to find the meeting agenda, call-in 
information and any meeting documents. Problems? Email info@mhtrust.org.  

Is public 
comment taken 
at Trustee 
committee 
meetings? 

Public comment is not regularly scheduled during Trustee committee meetings. Written comments 
are always welcome and may be submitted to the Trustees at any time to the address or fax number 
below or email steve.williams@alaska.gov. Note that, if you wish your comments distributed to 
Trustees prior to a committee meeting, all comments must be received two days prior to the 
meeting to allow time to distribute them to Trustees. 

What is the 
process for 
commenting on 
projects on 
Trust land?  

Public comment regarding projects on Trust land is most effective when provided early in the 
decision process. Trust land is managed by the Trust Land Office (TLO) on behalf of the Trust 
Authority. Written comment is sought by the TLO on a per-project basis. Before each project, the 
TLO consults with the Board of Trustees and issues a “best interest decision and public notice” 
regarding the project. The best interest decision and instructions for submitting comments are 
posted on the Trust Land Office website, through the State of Alaska Online Public Notices and in 
local newspapers. Following the comment period, the TLO may affirm, revise or rescind the best 
interest decision regarding the project. Of course, public comment regarding any Trust land issue 
may be provided to the Trustees at any time at the address or fax number below, by email to 
steve.williams@alaska.gov or at Trustee meetings as described above. 

For additional 
information: 

Call Steve Williams, Chief Operating Officer, at 907-269-7697 or email 
steve.williams@alaska.gov if you have additional questions. 

42

http://www.mhtrust.org/
mailto:steve.williams@alaska.gov
mailto:info@mhtrust.org
mailto:steve.williams@alaska.gov
http://www.mhtrustland.org/index.cfm
http://aws.state.ak.us/OnlinePublicNotices/
mailto:steve.williams@alaska.gov
mailto:steve.williams@alaska.gov


 

ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY  

BYLAWS 

ARTICLE V 
MEETINGS* 

 
 
Section 6.  The Trust Authority will schedule at least one period for public comment during each 
regularly scheduled Trust Authority meeting. Prior to beginning the public comment period, the 
presiding officer will specify any limitation on content or topics to be addressed. She or he should read 
or may paraphrase the following procedural constraints: 
 
(a) The purpose for having public comment is to allow persons the opportunity to provide information to 
the Trust Authority and to advise the Trust Authority about problems and issues. 
 
(b) The public comment period will not be considered a hearing and cannot be used for that purpose. 
Organizations are required to request hearings in advance in writing, and when granted by the Trust 
Authority, the hearing must be given public notice in accordance with law. 
 
(c) Public comments will normally be held to a maximum of three minutes per speaker. A waiver to the 
time limit may be granted by order of the Chair or motion adopted by the Trust Authority. 
 
(d) The public comment period is not to be used in order to criticize or attack specific individuals. 
 
(e) The Trust Authority may not take action during the comment period, but may take matters under 
advisement. 
 
(f) The Trust Authority may consider matters identified during the public comment period under new 
business, but may defer such matters to a subsequent meeting in order to complete the original agenda or 
to provide notice to the public that the item will be on the Trust Authority's agenda. 
 
(g) In order to afford the maximum amount of time to the public, responses or comments by Trust 
Authority members or Trust Authority staff during public comment  periods will be held to a minimum. 
 

 

 

* Excerpted from Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority Bylaws adopted May 2014. All statutes, regulations 
and bylaws governing The Trust can be found on our website 
http://mhtrust.org/about/governance/statutes/  
 

 

May 2014 
 

43

http://mhtrust.org/about/governance/statutes/


 
 

Current  
Trust Bylaws 

 
 
 

 

44



May 7, 2014 Page 1 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

 1 
 2 

ALASKA MENTAL HEALTH TRUST AUTHORITY 3 
BYLAWS 4 

 5 
ARTICLE I 6 

NAME 7 
 8 

The name of this organization is the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority. 9 
Common usage and abbreviation may be "The Trust" or “Trust Authority.” 10 
 11 

ARTICLE II 12 
MISSION  13 

 14 
Section 1. The Trust Authority acts in the best interest of the beneficiaries of The Trust.  Its 15 

mission is: 16 
 17 
The Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority (The Trust) administers the Mental Health Trust to 18 
improve the lives of beneficiaries. Trustees have a fiduciary responsibility to protect and 19 
enhance trust assets in perpetuity for the beneficiaries.  The Trust provides leadership in 20 
advocacy for and planning, implementing and funding of the Comprehensive Integrated 21 
Mental Health Program; and acts as a catalyst for change. 22 

 23 
 24 

ARTICLE III 25 
BOARD OF TRUSTEE 26 

MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF OFFICE 27 
 28 
Section 1. Trust Authority composition: 29 

(a) The Trust shall be governed by its board of trustees. 30 
 31 
(b) The Trust Authority Board of Trustees here after referred to as the Trust Authority, 32 

consists of seven members appointed by the governor and confirmed by the 33 
legislature.  The members appointed under this subsection shall be appointed based 34 
upon their ability in financial management and investment, in land management, or in 35 
services for the beneficiaries of The Trust. 36 
 37 

(c) A member of the board is entitled to: 38 
1. An honorarium of $200 each day spent at a meeting of the board, at a meeting of 39 

a subcommittee of the board, or as a representative of the board.  The sliding 40 
scale will be $50 for less than 2 hours, $100 for 2 to 4 hours, $150 for 4 to 6 hours 41 
and $200 for 6 hours or more.  Any conflicts will be resolved by the Executive 42 
Committee; and  43 

2. Per Diem and travel expenses are authorized for boards and commissions under 44 
AS 39.20.180.   45 

  46 

45



May 7, 2014 Page 2 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

Section 2.  Term of office, vacancies, and removal: 1 
   (a) The members of the Trust Authority serve staggered five-year terms.  A member 2 

shall continue to serve until the member's successor is appointed and confirmed by 3 
the legislature. 4 
 5 

(b) A vacancy occurring in the membership of the Trust Authority shall be filled within 60 6 
days by appointment of the governor for the unexpired portion of the vacated term. 7 

 8 
(c) The governor may remove a member of the Trust Authority only for cause, including 9 

incompetence, neglect of duty, misconduct in office, poor attendance, or lack of 10 
contribution to the Trust Authority's work. 11 

 12 
A member being removed for cause shall be given a copy of the charges and 13 
afforded an opportunity to publicly present a defense in person or by counsel upon 14 
not less than 10 days' written notice. If a member is removed for cause, the governor 15 
shall file with the lieutenant governor a complete statement of all charges made 16 
against the member and the governor's findings based on the charges, together with 17 
a complete record of the proceedings.  The removal of a member for cause 18 
constitutes a final administrative order.  A member seeking to appeal the governor's 19 
removal of a member for cause under this subsection shall file a notice of appeal with 20 
the superior court under AS 44.62.560. 21 
 22 

  (d) Except for a trustee who has served two consecutive five-year terms, a member of 23 
the Trust Authority may be reappointed.  A member of the Trust Authority who has 24 
served two consecutive five-year terms is not eligible for reappointment to the Trust 25 
Authority until one year has intervened. (§ 26 ch 66 SLA 1991). 26 

 27 
ARTICLE IV 28 

OFFICERS AND DUTIES 29 
 30 
Section 1.  The Trust Authority, by a majority vote of its membership, shall annually elect a 31 

Chair, Vice Chair, and Secretary/Treasurer and other officers it considers 32 
necessary from its membership. 33 

 34 
 35 
Section 2.  The officers must be elected by a majority vote at the September meeting, and 36 

their term of office shall start on October 1 and shall end on the following 37 
September 30. 38 

 39 
Section 3.  Officers may be re-elected to the office in which they serve by vote of the 40 

membership of the Trust Authority as above. 41 
 42 
Section 4.  In the event of the resignation, death, or removal from the Trust Authority, of the 43 

Chair, the Vice-Chair will succeed to the office of the Chair. 44 
 45 
Section 5.  If an office of the Trust Authority becomes vacant, an election shall be held to fill 46 

the vacancy at the next regular meeting of the Trust Authority following the 47 

46



May 7, 2014 Page 3 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

vacancy.  In the interim, the Chair may appoint a member to serve until the 1 
election is held. 2 

 3 
Section 6.  The duties of the officers shall be as follows: 4 
  (a)  Chair 5 

1. Call all meetings. Preside at all meetings. 6 
2. Appoint Committees and Chairs of Committees. 7 
3. Serve as ex-officio (voting) member of all Committees. 8 
4. Serve as the Trust Authority's official representative during his/her term. 9 
5. Operate and conduct the business and affairs of the Trust Authority according 10 

to the statutes, regulations, bylaws and policies adopted by the Trust 11 
Authority. 12 

6. Approve Trust Authority meeting agenda. 13 
 14 

  (b)  Vice Chair 15 
1. Assist the Chair in the discharge of his/her duties and preside at meetings in 16 

the absence of the Chair. 17 
2. Keep a list of actions taken by motion at each meeting and place items 18 

requiring follow-up on the agenda for the next meeting. 19 
3. Act as the parliamentarian for the Trust Authority. 20 
4. Perform other duties described in these Bylaws or in accordance with statutes, 21 

regulations, by-laws and policies adopted by the Trust Authority. 22 
 23 
  (c)  Secretary/Treasurer 24 

1. Sign to authenticate Trust Authority meeting minutes after Board approval for 25 
the record. Upon request, attest to the authenticity of Trust Authority by-laws, 26 
and approved motions. 27 

2. Perform other duties assigned by the Trust Authority or the Executive 28 
Committee. 29 

 30 
ARTICLE V 31 
MEETINGS 32 

 33 
Section 1.  The Trust Authority will meet at least four times each fiscal year. Committees will 34 

meet as necessary to accomplish their responsibilities. 35 
 36 
Section 2.  Special meetings of the Trust Authority may be held at such time and place as 37 

the Chair may order; or when any four Trustees request to the CEO a meeting be 38 
scheduled.  39 

 40 
Section 3.  Reasonable public notice of Trust Authority and Committee meetings shall be 41 

provided in accordance with AS 44.62.310.  Meetings of the Trust Authority and 42 
its Committees are subject to the Open Meetings Act, AS 44.62.310 and 43 
44.62.312. 44 

 45 
Section 4.  A quorum at all meetings shall consist of a simple majority of currently appointed 46 

Trust Authority members. One-half of the Trust Authority membership of a 47 
Committee constitutes a quorum at a Committee meeting for conducting and 48 

47



May 7, 2014 Page 4 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

exercising the powers of the Trust Authority, but in no event shall consist of less 1 
than two members. 2 

 3 
Section 5.  No member of the Trust Authority may designate a proxy. 4 
 5 
Section 6.  The Trust Authority will schedule at least one period for public comment during 6 

each regularly scheduled Trust Authority meeting. Prior to beginning the public 7 
comment period, the presiding officer will specify any limitation on content or 8 
topics to be addressed. She or he should read or may paraphrase the following 9 
procedural constraints: 10 

 11 
(a) The purpose for having public comment is to allow persons the opportunity to provide 12 

information to the Trust Authority and to advise the Trust Authority about problems and 13 
issues. 14 
 15 

(b) The public comment period will not be considered a hearing and cannot be used for 16 
that purpose. Organizations are required to request hearings in advance in writing, and 17 
when granted by the Trust Authority, the hearing must be given public notice in 18 
accordance with law. 19 
 20 

(c) Public comments will normally be held to a maximum of three minutes per speaker. A 21 
waiver to the time limit may be granted by order of the Chair or motion adopted by the 22 
Trust Authority. 23 
 24 

(d) The public comment period is not to be used in order to criticize or attack specific 25 
individuals.  26 
 27 

(e) The Trust Authority may not take action during the comment period, but may take 28 
matters under advisement. 29 
 30 

(f) The Trust Authority may consider matters identified during the public comment period 31 
under new business, but may defer such matters to a subsequent meeting in order to 32 
complete the original agenda or to provide notice to the public that the item will be on 33 
the Trust Authority's agenda. 34 
 35 

(g) In order to afford the maximum amount of time to the public, responses or comments 36 
by Trust Authority members or Trust Authority staff during public comment periods will 37 
be held to a minimum. 38 

 39 
Section 7.  Meetings of the Trust Authority may be conducted by teleconference or 40 

videoconference in accordance with AS 44.62.312(a)(6) provided that with 41 
respect to a matter which requires the consideration of documents a member 42 
participating by teleconference or videoconference may vote only on those 43 
matters to which he or she has access to said documents. 44 

 45 
Section 8.  46 

(a) Formal actions by The Trust are accomplished through adoption of motions. 47 
 48 

48



May 7, 2014 Page 5 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

(b) Motions must be proposed by a Committee or Trust Authority member. 1 
 2 
(c) Copies of motions on the agenda will be available to the public at the opening of the 3 

Trust Authority meeting.  4 
 5 
Section 9.  A document becomes an official Trust Authority document only upon approval of 6 

the Trust Authority.  Any document not approved by the Trust Authority shall be 7 
clearly marked “DRAFT”.   8 

 9 
ARTICLE VI 10 

COMMITTEES 11 
 12 

The Trust Authority Chair may designate Ad Hoc Committees or task forces to 13 
accomplish special purposes.  Persons other than Trust Authority members may serve on 14 
the Trust Authority's Ad Hoc Committees and task forces; however, such persons may not 15 
be voting members of such committees, only appointed committee members may vote on 16 
committee actions.  (The Chair of the Board of Trustees is a voting member of each 17 
committee, article IV, section 6 (a))  Committee actions must be reported to the Trust 18 
Authority at the next regular Trust Authority meeting. 19 
 20 

ARTICLE VII 21 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 22 

 23 
Section 1.  The Executive Committee of the Trust Authority is composed of three officers, 24 

the Chair, the Vice Chair, and the Secretary/Treasurer.  The Chief Executive 25 
Officer shall participate as requested at Executive Committee meetings.  26 

 27 
Section 2.  The Executive Committee: 28 

(a) Has full authority within the limits of established Trust Authority priorities, policies, and 29 
procedures to act on behalf of the Trust Authority between regularly scheduled 30 
meetings with a dollar limit of $500,000.00 on expenditures.  31 

 32 
(b) Evaluates the Chief Executive Officer's performance in carrying out policies, 33 

procedures, and directions of the Trust Authority before the November Trustee 34 
meeting. 35 

  36 
(c) Refers matters to other Committees for reports to the Trust Authority. 37 
 38 
(d) Monitors activities of the Trust Authority through the Standing Committees. 39 
 40 
(e) Reviews corporate performance measures, analyzes them, and brings them to the 41 

Trust Authority with recommendations. 42 
 43 
(f) Approves the annual corporation audit and forwards to the state for inclusion in the 44 

state financial statements within timeframes set by the state department of  45 
Administration.  46 

(g) Reviews Memorandums of Agreement (MOAs) that involve the Trust Authority 47 
and other governmental entity’s except the Department of Natural Resources in 48 

49



May 7, 2014 Page 6 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

respect to the Trust Land Office and recommends to the Board of Trustees for 1 
approval.  2 

 3 
Section 3.  The Executive Committee will meet no less than two times a year.  4 
 5 
 6 

ARTICLE VIII 7 
STANDING COMMITTEES 8 

 9 
Standing Committees and their Chairs will be appointed by the Chair. 10 
 11 

(a)  The Resource Management Committee: 12 
 Develops policies and plans for protecting, enhancing, and managing the Trust’s 13 

non-cash resources in the best interests of the beneficiaries. 14 
 Implements plans at the direction of and on behalf of The Trust in accordance with 15 

Trust statutes and regulations. 16 
 Approves disposals with an annual lease rental more than $50,000 and not to 17 

exceed $200,000; and disposals with sale revenues more than $100,000 and less 18 
than $500,000. This authority includes disposals that could produce revenues in the 19 
form of royalties that exceed this revenue limit if the disposal is an extension or 20 
expansion of an existing lease that has previously been subject to the consultation 21 
process, so long as any expansion or addition to that lease does not exceed 25% of 22 
the original lease acreage. All approvals for new disposals of interest that include 23 
royalties shall be approved by The Trust Authority.  24 

 Approves project-specific expenditures from the principal, budget reserves or the 25 
facility maintenance account up to $50,000. 26 

 Reviews Trust Authority Memorandum of Agreement with the Department of 27 
Natural Resources for management of the Trust Land Office and recommends for 28 
approval to Board of Trustees.  29 

 Reviews annual operating budget for TLO and recommends approval to Finance 30 
Committee.  31 

 Evaluates, along with DNR, the Executive Director of the TLO annually.  32 
 33 
(b) The Planning Committee: 34 

 Identifies and forecasts the status and needs of beneficiaries. 35 
 Develops program policies and plans to meet needs and improve the 36 

circumstances of beneficiaries; and recommends to the Trust Authority for approval 37 
as appropriate. 38 

 Evaluates the implementation of approved policies and plans affecting 39 
beneficiaries. 40 

 41 
(c) The Finance Committee: 42 

 Develops policies for investment and fiscal management for approval by the Trust 43 
Authority. 44 

 Oversees the implementation of approved investment and fiscal management 45 
policies. 46 

 Reviews the administrative budgets for The Trust and Trust Land Office and then 47 
recommends to the Trust Authority for approval. 48 

50



May 7, 2014 Page 7 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

 Approves expenditure of authority funds to implement Trust Authority-approved 1 
Focus Area allocations or bundles of an unlimited amount for a state fiscal year so 2 
long as the total annual budget approved for this purpose for the same fiscal year is 3 
not increased.  4 

 Approves authority funds for individual Partnership Grants, General Authority 5 
Grants and Trust Directed Projects in amounts up to $50,000 awarded to a specific 6 
recipient. 7 
 8 

 Recommends to the Trust Authority individual Partnership, General Authority 9 
Grants and Trust Directed Projects in amounts over $50,000 for each specific 10 
recipient.   11 

 Approves Changes of Intent for MHTAAR grants involving the carry-over from one 12 
state fiscal year to the next. 13 

    14 
    15 

ARTICLE IX 16 
 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 17 

 18 
Section 1. The Trust Authority shall hire and appoint a Chief Executive Officer as provided 19 

by law.  20 
 21 
Section 2. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for ensuring the staffing, planning, 22 

organizing, coordinating, and directing all activities necessary to fulfill the 23 
powers, duties, and purpose of the Trust Authority. 24 

 25 
Section 3. The Trust Authority will evaluate the performance of the Chief Executive Officer 26 

after the first six months of employment. Thereafter, the Chief Executive Officer's 27 
performance shall be evaluated annually by the Executive Committee. 28 

 29 
Section 4. Termination of employment of the Chief Executive Officer is by simple majority of 30 

the seven trustees. 31 
 32 
Section 5. Authorizes disposition of assets with an annual lease rental of $50,000 or less 33 

and/or total sale revenues of $100,000 or less. 34 
 35 
Section 6. Designates funds for contracts or grants in amounts up to $50,000 each to a 36 

specific recipient so long as the Focus Area project or bundle is within the scope 37 
and amount previously approved by the Trust Authority but had not already been 38 
designated to a specific agency.  39 

 40 
Section 7. Approves authority grants in amounts up to $10,000 for purposes that are 41 

allowed under AS 47.30.056 totaling not more than the total approved for this 42 
purpose annually by the Trust Authority for Trust Directed Projects.  43 

  44 
Section 8. Executes transactions previously approved by the Trust Authority. 45 
 46 
Section 9. The Chief Executive Officer will provide fiscal oversight of the Trust Land Office 47 

on behalf of The Trust Authority.  48 

51



May 7, 2014 Page 8 
I: Public/policy and procedures/Bylaws 

 1 
 2 

ARTICLE X 3 
PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY 4 

 5 
Unless otherwise provided by law or these Bylaws, the Trust Authority's procedures 6 

shall be governed by Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised.  7 
 8 
 9 

ARTICLE XI 10 
ETHICS 11 

 12 
Section 1. Trust Authority members are required to comply with AS 39.52.010 -39.52.960, 13 

the Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act.   14 
 15 
Section 2. In addition to complying with the requirements of the Alaska Executive Branch 16 

Ethics Act, Trust Authority members shall refrain from influencing or attempting 17 
to influence their fellow Trust Authority members, or the Trust Authority's staff, to 18 
take any official action or make any recommendation for official action with 19 
respect to the state's funding, direct or indirect, of an organization with which 20 
they are associated. 21 

 22 
Section 3.  Trust Authority members are required to comply with the Conflict of Interest 23 

Declaration as stipulated in the Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Acts. 24 
 25 

 26 
ARTICLE XII 27 

AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 28 
 29 

These Bylaws may be amended at any regular or special meeting of the Trust 30 
Authority by a two-thirds vote of Trust Authority members provided that written notice and 31 
copies of the proposed amendment have been submitted to the members 30 days prior to 32 
the meeting or by unanimous vote without notice. 33 
 34 

52



 
 

The Planning Committee Report will be presented at 
the Full Board of Trustee Meeting on  

January 27th, 2016 
 

You can reference the  
January 26th, 2016 

Planning Committee Meeting Documents 
on The Trust website  

www.mhtrust.org  
 

http://mhtrust.org/meeting/meeting-1420480927/      
 

 
 
 

53

http://www.mhtrust.org/
http://mhtrust.org/meeting/meeting-1420480927/


 
 

FY16 Small Projects Approvals 
November 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



 

 

MEMO 

 
To: Russ Webb, Chairman, Board of Trustees 

 

Date: January 19, 2016 
Re: FY16 November Small Project Approval 
Fiscal Year: 2016 
Amount: $55,500 
Grantee: Multiple Small Project Grantees (Attached) 
Project Title: FY16 November Small Projects 
  

 

REQUESTED MOTION: 

Approve the recommended FY16 small projects from the November application period in the amount 
of $55,500. 

  
Project Description 
The Trust, in accordance with its mission to improve the lives and circumstances of beneficiaries, 
awards one-time small projects grants of up to $10,000 to create innovative new program ideas, 
substantially improve and supplement existing activities, or significantly increase the quality of 
ongoing projects.  The small project grants are available three times a year, July, November, and 
March. 
 
For the November 2015 application period, the Trust received 14 applications totaling $125,300.  
A review committee comprised of Trust staff, with written input from the statutory advisory 
boards, met on December 12th to review the applications and make recommendations to the full 
Board of Trustees. 
 
Attached is a spreadsheet listing the review committee’s recommendations to approve $55,500 
for 6 small project grants. 
 
Attachment; Small Project PEC Recommendations, December 12, 2015 

  

  

55



November 2015 Small Project PEC Recommendations

December 12, 2015

PEC recommends Trustees approve
ID Organization Project Title Brief Description Requested Amount Location PEC Recommendation Comments

6952 JP Jones 

Community 

Development 

Center Inc.

JP Jones Vocational and 

Employment Resource 

Center Upgrade

The requested funding will enable us to make necessary upgrades to our Vocational and 

Employment Resource Center to allow us to provide Trust beneficiaries being released 

from the Department of Corrections with computer training, job assistance and guidance 

in order to educate them with basic computer and office skills to enter back into the 

workforce and assist our population who have chemical dependencies, mental and/or 

physical disabilities.

$10,000.00 Fairbanks Recommend Approval, 

$10,000.00

This grant is targeted at Trust beneficiaries recently 

released from the Department of Corrections and will 

assist them in obtaining important employment skills.  

This program assists in the state's criminal justice 

recidivism reduction efforts.

6954 South Peninsula 

Behavioral 

Health Services 

Inc.

Brookside Supported 

Housing Furniture 

Replacement

This grant will be used to purchase furniture for the Brookside Supported Housing facility,  

where Trust beneficiaries rent studio apartments, and are provided 24/7 staffing to help 

ensure they can maintain as independent a lifestyle as possible.  The furniture in the 

great room,  where meals and activities occur,  is nearly 10 years old, falling into 

disrepair, and does not provide a comfortable location for clients to gain skills through 

skills training, or to have an inviting place to relax and be with friends and family.  

$5,500.00 Homer Recommend Approval, 

$5,500.00

This project provides much needed upgrades and 

improvments to the living environments of Trust 

beneficiaries on the Kenai Peninsula.

6958 No Limits Inc. South Side Reentry 

Center-Reentry 

Supportive Housing

No Limits is a Reentry Supportive Housing Program in Fairbanks Alaska.  The focus is on 

Trust beneficiaries involved with Alaska's criminal justice system.  We have found that 

most returning offenders are Trust beneficiaries. Funds from this grant will allow us to 

improve the program through the purchase of needed appliances such as washers and 

dryers, computers for the resource room, a commercial stove and a refrigerator.  This 

equipment will enhance the supportive services available to Trust beneficiaries released 

to Fairbanks communities. These services will provide successful transition to 

communities while building self-sufficiency.

$10,000.00 Fairbanks Recommend Approval, 

$10,000.00

This grant will provide supported housing improvements 

for Trust beneficiaries transitioning from incarceration 

back into the community.  This program assists in the 

state's criminal justice recidivism reduction efforts.

6959 Lutheran Social 

Services of 

Alaska Inc.

Roosevelt Renovation 

Unit #6

This grant will assist with the renovation of one of six units  that provide housing for 

individuals with long-term behavioral health issues.  The current tenant has been in the 

unit for close to 18 years and there needs to be some major renovation.   Renovations 

include fireplace removal, replacement of subfloor in bathroom and kitchen, making the 

bathroom handicap accessible, replacing kitchen cabinets, repainting and replacing 

flooring throughout.

$10,000.00 Anchorage Recommend Approval, 

$10,000.00

This renovation is needed to create a safe and healthy 

living environment for current and future Trust 

beneficiaries.

6960 Community 

Connections, 

Inc.

Community 

Connections Resource 

Library

The purpose of this project is to build the educational resources of Community 

Connections to offer essential materials for the individuals receiving our services, our 

staff members and community partners including those participating on the Family Infant 

Toddler court team.  These materials will be available in the form of lending libraries as 

well as given to those who will need them on a permanent basis.

$10,000.00 Ketchikan Recommend Approval, 

$10,000.00

This project will provide educational materials, such as 

books and DVDs, to Trust beneficiaries and their families 

in the Ketchikan area.

6962 Cook Inlet 

Council on 

Alcohol and 

Drug Abuse

Online Treatment The proposed Online Treatment project will be the first-of-its-kind online outpatient 

treatment model in Alaska.  It is designed to be fully sustained within one year.  Its 

purpose will meet the currently unmet needs of the 12 outlying, underserved 

communities  of the Cook Inlet Council on Alcohol and Drug Abuse's region.  The 

communities currently receive only 27% of CICADA's outpatient services.

$10,000.00 Kenai Recommend Approval, 

$10,000.00

This is an innovative program targeted at rural Trust 

beneficiaries, living in 12 outlying communities,who are 

currently underserved.

Total recommended to be approved $55,500.00 

56



November 2015 Small Project PEC Recommendations

December 12, 2015

ID Organization Project Title Brief Description Requested Amount Location PEC Recommendation Comments

6950 Brave Heart 

Volunteers

Supporting Brave 

Volunteers

This project would connect with former Brave Heart volunteers to re-engage them as 

weekly visiting companions to Trust beneficiaries and elders with chronic or terminal 

conditions. This project will formalize volunteer resource and education portal on BHV's 

website and offer these volunteers and community members a new education series on 

how to on-going and anticipatory grief. This will increase the number of visiting 

volunteers who have access to education resources.

$10,000.00 Sitka Recommend Decline This is for ongoing operating expenses, which are not 

funded through the Small Project program.

6951 AtLastAHouse AtlastaHouse 

Supportive Housing 

Catalog and website

The work produces a catalog of the transitional and supportive housing available in 

Anchorage, Alaska. The catalog will serve ALL the beneficiaries of the Alaska Mental 

Health Trust. The catalog will be in an 8.5" x 11" readily reproducible form for distribution 

to case managers, service providers, needy individuals and family members of those in 

need of Supportive housing. In addition to a paper form, we will provide the same 

information on the new website of AtLastAHouse.org, which we intend to maintain and 

continuously update for years to come.

$7,500.00 Anchorage Recommend Decline The organization has not applied for IRS tax-exempt 

status, so they are not currently elligible for the Small 

Project program.

6953 Alaska Arts 

Confluence

Expressive Arts Therapy 

Workshop

Robin Grace, LCSW, a nationally recognized rural psychotherapist specializing in trauma 

work, will lead a two-day therapeutic expressive arts workshop April 8-9 to facilitate 

Trust Beneficiary self-confidence and enhance self-esteem.  Participation includes one-on-

one and group participation in creative expression and appropriate processing of the 

experience. Haines teaching artists Kerry Cohen and Debi Knight Kennedy will team with 

Grace to provide two separate hands-on "Expressive Arts therapy" sessions; "Creating 

with Clay" and "Profiles of emotion through making paper dolls." Works created in the 

sessions will be professionally displayed in one of 24 Art on Main Street storefront 

windows through April 23.

$6,000.00 Haines Recommend Decline The request is focused on personnel and travel costs, not 

items or services directly for Trust beneficiaries.

6956 Hoonah Indian 

Association

Hunting in Wartime Hunting in Wartime is a powerful documentary about the experiences of Tlingit Vietnam 

veterans from Hoonah, AK which is the centerpiece of this project (a mental health 

outreach program for veterans and their communities). 

The project consists of:

Community screenings followed by group discussions lead by the film director and/or 

local mental health counselors; creation of a mental health program designed to be used 

by counselors working with veterans; and, creation of a resource website for the film's 

interviews, including testimonies of veterans that didn't make it into the final cut.

$10,000.00 Hoonah Recommend Decline This project is for website design and public broadcasting 

fees, and is not targeted at Trust beneficiaries.  

6957 Mat-Su Services 

For Children & 

Adults Inc.

MSSCA Secure 

Computing 

Infrastructure

When receiving IDD services, Trust beneficiaries (people with or at risk of Intellectual and 

Developmental Disabilities (IDD)) release information to the provider agency that is 

protected by the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act, HIPAA. Not only is the 

protection of this information required by State and Federal Law, it is the responsible 

thing to do and is something MSSCA takes very seriously. This project will provide MSSCA 

staff with a secure computing environment where personal information provided by 

Trust beneficiaries can remain protected and immune to physical loss.

$10,000.00 Wasilla Recommend Decline This project is a core operating expense, and not 

appropriate for Small Project funding.

PEC recommends Trustees decline

57



November 2015 Small Project PEC Recommendations

December 12, 2015

6961 Catholic Social 

Services

Furnishings for 

Refugees

RAIS, a program of Catholic Social Services is the only refugee resettlement agency which 

resettles approximately 150 new refugees each year. CSS is requesting this grant funding 

to purchase household furnishings and winter clothing for the new arrivals. The funding 

would allow the basic needs of our client's to be met upon arrival while allowing the 

clients to focus on adjusting to life in the United States as well as focusing on their paths 

to economic self-sufficiency.

$10,000.00 Anchorage Recommend Decline This project is not specifically targeted at Trust 

beneficiaries.

6963 Valley 

Residential 

Services, Inc.

VRS - ADA Automatic 

Door Openers and 

Handicap Ramp

Valley Residential Services (VRS) is requesting a small grant in order to install a set of ADA 

automatic door openers on each of the two entrances to our office building. We also plan 

to install a handicap ramp on the sidewalk of the rear entrance for easier access. This will 

allow individuals of limited physical ability easier access into our building and office.

$8,800.00 Wasilla Recommend Decline This project is not specifically targeted at Trust 

beneficiaries.

6964 Quill Inc. Homes for Heroes Homes for Heroes is a housing initiative for homeless, disabled, and low income veterans 

struggling within society. We plan to build free transition housing for homeless veterans, 

ADA housing for our disabled veterans, and also plan to build more affordable living to 

those whom are struggling with addiction and/or life circumstances.

$7,500.00 Wasilla Recommend Decline The application as written is too broad, and is not 

targeted specifically at Trust beneficiairies.  Trust staff will 

follow up to explore other financial support options.

58



 
 

The Resource Management Committee Report will be 
presented at the Full Board of Trustee Meeting on  

January 27th, 2016 
 

You can reference the  
January 26th, 2016 

Resource Management Committee  
Meeting Documents on The Trust website  

www.mhtrust.org  
 

http://mhtrust.org/meeting/meeting-1420484800/       
 

 
 
 

59

http://www.mhtrust.org/
http://mhtrust.org/meeting/meeting-1420484800/


 
 

The Finance Committee Report will be presented at 
the Full Board of Trustee Meeting on  

January 27th, 2016 
 

You can reference the  
January 26th, 2016 

Finance Committee Meeting Documents 
on The Trust website  

www.mhtrust.org  
 

http://mhtrust.org/meeting/meeting-1420479787/    
 

 
 

 

60

http://www.mhtrust.org/
http://mhtrust.org/meeting/meeting-1420479787/


 
 

Alaska Commission 
on Aging 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

61



1/19/2016

1

Alaska   
Commission on Aging

Presentation to the     
Alaska Mental Health Trust 

Authority
January 28, 2016

“And in the end, it’s not the years in your life. It’s the life in 
your years that counts.” Edward J. Stieglitz 

Presentation Overview

 Budget Impacts for Senior Services,                                
SFY17 Governor’s Budget & Federal Appropriations 

 Overview of Legislation Affecting Seniors

 Update on Efforts to Implement Alaska’s Roadmap 
to Address Alzheimer’s Disease & Related Dementia

 New BRFSS Findings Regarding Alaskans with ADRD 
Cognitive Impairments & Other State Comparisons

 Governor’s Housing Summit & Senior Housing 
Recommendations

 ACoA Board Update

 Remaining questions and discussion

62



1/19/2016

2

Governor’s SFY17 Budget & Federal Appropriations 

Budget Impacts for Senior Services

State Budget Overview of Programs Serving Older Alaskans:
Comparison of FY2016 Enacted Budget & 

Governor’s Proposed FY2017 Budget (December 2015)

Program Enacted FY2016 
Budget

Proposed FY2017 
Governor’s Budget

$ Change 
SFY2017 & 2016

$+ / $‐

Senior Community 
Based Grants

(Senior & Disabilities 
Services)

$15,748.8 Total
$4,104.4 GF

$4,341.6 GF/MH
$644.4 GF/MH Match
$6,358.4 Federal
$300.0 MHTAAR

$16,984.0 Total
$9,977.1 GF

$6,706.9 Federal
$300.0 MHTAAR

+$1,235.2 Total
+$5,872.7 GF

‐$4,341.6 GF/MH
‐$644.4 GF/MH Match

+$348.5 Federal
$0 MHTAAR

Senior Benefits Payment 
Program

(Public Assistance)

$20,040.7 Total
$20,036.1 GF
$4.6 Federal

$20,029.3 Total
$20,029.3 GF
$0 Federal

‐$11.4 Total
‐$6.8 GF

‐$4.6 Federal

Medicaid Adult Dental 
Services

(Medicaid Services)

$15,700.5 Total
$5,765.3 GF/MH Match

$597.1 GF
$9,338.1 Federal

$21,694.6 Total
$5,765.3 GF/MH Match

$279.0 GF
$15,650.3 Federal

+$5,994.1 Total
$0 GF/MH Match

‐$318.1 GF
+$6,312.2 Federal

63



1/19/2016

3

State Budget Overview of Programs Serving Older Alaskans:
Comparison of FY2016 Enacted Budget & 

Governor’s Proposed FY2017 Budget (December 2015)

Program Enacted FY2016 Budget Proposed FY2017 
Governor’s Budget

$ Change 
SFY2017 & 2016

$+ / $‐

Office of Long‐Term Care 
Ombudsman

(Dept. of Revenue, 
AMHTA)

$856.6 Total
$402.4 I/A Receipts
$454.2 GF/MH

$856.6 Total
$402.4 I/A Receipts
$454.2 GF/MH

No change

Senior & Disabilities 
Medicaid Services
(Medicaid Services)

$552,112.8 Total
$285,815.0 Federal

$208,350.3 GF/MH Match
$56,879.1 GF

$518.4 I/A Receipts
$550.0 Stat Designated

$542,263.3 Total
$289,227.0 Federal

$208,350.3 GF/MH Match
$43,617.6 GF

$518.4 I/A Receipts
$550.0 Stat Designated

‐$9,849.5 Total
+$3,412.0 Federal
‐$13,261.5 GF/MH 

Match

Pioneer Homes
(Alaska Pioneer Homes)

$61,506.4 Total
$631.0 Federal
$18,624.6 GF

$16,901.4 Designated GF
$6,286.5 I/A Receipts
$15,980.8 GF/MH

$3,082.1 Stat Designated

$60,710.7 Total
$631.0 Federal
$17,828.9 GF

$16,901.4 Designated GF
$6,286.5 I/A Receipts
$15,980.8 GF/MH

$3,082.1 Stat Designated

‐$795.7 Total
‐$795.7 GF

State Budget Overview of Programs Serving Older Alaskans:
Comparison of FY2016 Enacted Budget & 

Governor’s Proposed FY2017 Budget (December 2015)

Program Enacted FY2016 Budget Proposed FY2017 
Governor’s Budget

$ Change 
SFY2017 & 2016

$+ / $‐

Energy Assistance 
Program

(Public Assistance)

$23,357.9 Total
$14,183.6 Federal

$9,174.3 GF

$14,183.6 Total
$14,183.6 Federal

$0 GF

‐$9,174.3 Total
No change in 
federal funds
‐$9,174.3 GF

Senior Citizen Housing 
Development Program
(Alaska Housing Finance 

Corporation)

$0 Total $1,750.0 Total
$1,750.0 Other

+$1,750,0 Total
+$1,750.0 Other

Alaska  Commission on 
Aging (Senior & 
Disabilities)

$542.7 Total
$45.9 GF

$348.1 I/A Receipts
$29.6 GF/MH

$119.1 MHTAAR

$539.7 Total
$42.9 GF

$348.1 I/A Receipts
$29.6 GF/MH

$119.1 MHTAAR

‐$3.0 Total

64



1/19/2016

4

Programs Serving Older Alaskans:
Number of Seniors Served by Program, SFY2014 & SFY2015

Program Number of Seniors 
Served, SFY2014

Number of Seniors 
Served, SFY 2015

Change 2015 & 2014 
(+ / ‐)

Senior & Disabilities: 
Title III Senior Grant‐
Funded Services
(Seniors, age 60+)

34,839 35,254 +415 more seniors 
served

Alaska Pioneer Homes
(% of ADRD Residents at 

Level III)

55% 56% +1% ADRD residents

Adults Living 
Independently Waiver, 
Age 65+ Recipients
(Senior & Disabilities 

Services)

1,884 senior recipients 1,678 senior recipients ‐ 206 fewer seniors 
served 

Senior Benefits (Division 
of Public Assistance) 

11,298 recipients, 
age 65+

11,540 recipients, 
age 65+

+242 more senior 
recipients

Source: ACoA Senior Snapshot, SFY2015 

Programs Serving Older Alaskans:
Number of Seniors Served by Program, SFY2014 & SFY2015

Program Number of Seniors 
Served, SFY2014

Number of Seniors 
Served, SFY 2015

Change 2015 & 2014 
(+ / ‐)

Food Stamps
(Division of Public 

Assistance) 

6,548 seniors, age 60+
(November 2014)

7,042 seniors, age 60+
(November 2015)

+494 more senior Food Stamps 
recipients

Heating Assistance: 
Households with an Elder 

Present (age 65+)

Total Households: 4,055
LIHEAP: 3,213

Alaska Affordable Heating 
Program: 842 

Total Households: 3,846 
LIHEAP: 3,031

Alaska Affordable Heating 
Program: 815

Total Households: Loss of  209 
Elder Households
LIHEAP: ‐182 Elder Households
AKAHP: ‐27 Elder Households

AHFC Waitlist for 
Senior/Disabled Housing

567
(November 2014)

663
(November 2015)

+96 gain on waitlist

Office of Long‐Term Care 
Ombudsman (Long‐term 
care residents, age 60+)

Cases: 734      
Complaints: 1,311 

Cases: 618
Complaints: 1,044

Cases: 116 fewer cases
Complaints: 267 fewer 

complaints

Source: ACoA Senior Snapshot, SFY2015

65



1/19/2016

5

Congress Protects & Invests in Senior Programs, FFY2016

 Congregate Senior Meals funded at $448.3 million (+$10.2 M)

 Home Delivered Meals funded at $226.3 million (+$9.9 M)

 National Family Caregiver Support Program funded at $150.6 
million (+$5 M)

 HUD Section 202 Housing for the Elderly funded at $432.7 million 
(+$12.7 million)

 Alzheimer’s Research increased base funding of $350 million

 State Health Insurance Assistance Program (SHIP) level‐funded at 
$52.1 million (instead of $22.1 M cut)

 Senior Community Service Employment Program level‐funded at 
$434.4 million (instead of $30 M cut)

 Aging and Disability Resource Centers level‐funded at $6.1 million 
(instead of $360,000 cut)

Advocacy to Sustain Services for Older Alaskans and 
Senior Trust Beneficiaries & Reduce Budget Impacts

 Address Alaska’s Fiscal Gap

 Invest in Home and Community Based Services for 
seniors and other vulnerable Alaskans to prevent or 
delay costly nursing home and hospital stays and reduce 
the impact of costs from a growing senior population.

 Implement the Inclusive Community Choices 1915 (i/k) 
Medicaid State Plan options and conserve State GF 
funds by using federal Medicaid dollars to help pay for 
elder care. 

66



1/19/2016

6

ACoA Legislative Priorities

 Preserve safety net programs/services for vulnerable 
older Alaskans.

 Support family & other informal caregivers with 
appropriate services and training.

 Support the Governor’s SFY17 proposed capital budget 
for AHFC’s Senior Citizen Housing Development Fund.

 Protect Older Alaskans from financial exploitation, 
abuse and harm with appropriate funding for elder 
protection agencies and passage of HB 8.

 Enact legislation to reauthorize the Alaska Commission 
on Aging – SB 124 & HB 226.

Pending Legislation Affecting Seniors

67



1/19/2016

7

Carry Over & Pre‐Filed Legislation

Carry Over Bills from Last Session

 HB 8, Power of Attorney: Representatives Hughes & 
Gruenberg

 SB 72, Designated Caregivers for Patients: Senator Giessel

 SB 49, Civil Legal Services Fund: Senator McGuire

 SB 90, Used Durable Equipment: Senator Stoltze

 HB 179, Food Program Donations: Representative Kreiss‐
Tomkins

Pre‐Filed Legislation

 HB 226, SB 124, Extension of the Alaska Commission on 
Aging: Representative Hawker and Senator Stoltze, 
respectively

Implementation of Alaska’s ADRD 
Roadmap Progress Report

68



1/19/2016

8

Highlights of Roadmap Implementation Progress

Progress Status in 2015
 Education and support provided to 2,795 Alaskans in 112 
communities and development of a new Healthy Body, 
Healthy Brain public awareness effort (Priority strategy 
1.1.1)

 Development of the Inclusive Community Choices 1915 
(i/k) Medicaid State Plan options is on track to bring in new 
federal funding and improve services for Alaskans with 
dementia and other cognitive impairments (Priority 
strategy 2.1.1)

 The Perceived Cognitive Impairment Module is included in 
the 2016 BRFSS (Roadmap strategy 6.1.3)

Source: ADRD Roadmap Annual Stakeholder Meeting, November 2015

Highlights of Roadmap Implementation Progress

Progress Status in 2015
 Assisted living rate setting process based on acuity is 
underway with four tiers being developed through a cost‐
based method (Roadmap strategy 2.1.3).

 Piloting of HomeMAPs in Southeast, Kenai and possibly in 
northwest Alaska are being conducted (Roadmap strategy 
3.1.6).

 Development  and implementation of the Alaska Geriatrics 
Interdisciplinary Leadership Development, a training 
program to improve systems of care for older Alaskans is 
almost ready to launch (Priority strategy 4.2.1). 

Source: ADRD Roadmap Annual Stakeholder Meeting, November 2015

69



1/19/2016

9

New BRFSS Findings Regarding Alaskans 
with Cognitive Decline

Everyone with a brain is at risk for Alzheimer’s disease.

Risks for Alaskans with Cognitive 
Decline Who Live Alone

1 in 8
Alaskans with 
Cognitive Decline 
Live Alone

Increased 
Risk for

Self‐Neglect

Falls

Wandering

Hospitalizations

Source: 2015 ADRD Roadmap Stakeholder Meeting, Alzheimer’s Association

70



1/19/2016

10

Percent Alaskans with Subjective Cognitive Decline 
Compared to 17‐State Composite (BRFSS 2013)

11%
9% 10% 10%

25%

12% 11% 12%
10%

14%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

All 45+ 45‐54 55‐64 65‐74 75+

Alaska

Overall

Source: 2015 ADRD Roadmap Stakeholder Meeting, Alzheimer’s Association

Percent Alaskans with Cognitive Decline who 
Discussed with Health Care Provider (BRFSS 2013)

29.0%

41.2%

17.5%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45%

All 45+

45‐59

60+

Source: 2015 ADRD Roadmap Stakeholder Meeting, Alzheimer’s Association

71



1/19/2016

11

Governor’s Housing Summit, 
Senior Housing: January 6, 2016

Recommendations from the Housing Summit, 
Senior Housing Breakout Session

 Problem Statement: Per capita, we have the fastest 
growing aging population contributing $3 billion to the 
economy. As a state, we lack appropriate, affordable & 
accessible housing.

 Recommendations Offered:
 Support housing strategies identified in Alaska State 
Plan for Senior Services and the Alaska ADRD Roadmap

 Develop a State Housing Trust
 Promote awareness of renovation loans for home 
modifications to age in place

 Pilot a “roommate finder” for seniors 
 Support Governor’s Capital Budget Increment of 
$1,750,000 invested by the Rasmuson Foundation that 
requires a legislative contribution.

72



1/19/2016

12

Alaska Commission on Aging 
Board Updates

Introducing ACoA Commissioner Gordon Glaser:  
Appointed December 2015, Public Member Seat

PROFESSIONALWORK EXPERIENCE:
 Health Program Manager/Education Specialist, 
Division of Public Health, State of Alaska (1992 – 2010)

COMMUNITY SERVICE:
 Board Alaska Safe Kids Coalition,  2000‐2008
 Board Denali Safety Council ,  2003‐2012
 Board Anchorage Alaska Injury Prevention 

Center/Safe Community, 1995‐2016
 AK Child Fatality Review Committee,    2010
 Board President Anchorage Senior Activity 

Center, 2011‐2013
 Board Member Anchorage Senior Activity  

Center, 2011‐2016
 Vice President North Star Community   

Council,  2009‐2014
 West High Key Club Advisor, 2011‐2016
 Board Alaska Jewish Museum and Cultural 

Center, 2010‐2016
 League of American Bicyclist Instructor,  

2010‐2016



73



1/19/2016

13

Thank you. Questions?

The Generational Power of Aging
ACoA Commissioner Marie Darlin and her great grandchildren

74



 
 

Governor’s Council 
on Disabilities and 
Special Education 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 

75



1/19/2016

1

Governor’s Council 
on Disabilities and 
Special Education

January 2016 
AMHTA  Meeting

Patrick Reinhart, 
Executive Director

Topics Addressed

1) Review FY16 budget reductions and impact

2) Overview of the FY 17 Governor’s budget and 
potential impacts on the I/DD beneficiary group

3) Council’s priorities for 2016 legislative session

4) General Comments/GCDSE News

76



1/19/2016

2

FY 16 Budget Impact
 FY 16 GF cuts:

 $506 K to DD Community grants 
 $50 K to the Council 
 $4.4 M from SDS from unallocated Medicaid cuts.

 Minimal impact on amount of funding for DD grants 
since one organization did not apply.

 Council absorbed cuts in;
 Frugal practices in travel
 Reductions in meeting costs
 Governor appointed 4 fewer members

 SDS has reduced the number of draws from the 
Developmental Disability Registration and Review 
(Waitlist), from 200 consumers per year to 50. 
 This was a surprise to the DD community in general—The 

Council and many others in our beneficiary community opposed 
this move. 

Overview of FY 17 Budget Impact
Capital

 $500.0 ($250 UGF/$250 MHTAAR) for Essential 
Program Equipment

 $1,050.0 ($750 UGF/$300 MHTAAR) for Home 
Modification to Retain Housing

 $4,500.0 ($750 UGF/$3,750 federal) AHFC Housing 
and Urban Development HOME grant

 $7,700.0 ($6,850 UGF/$850 MHTAAR) MH:AHFC 
Homeless Assistance Program

 $1,500.0 (UGF) for MH:AHFC Beneficiary and Special 
Needs Housing

 $1,000.0 (UGF) Public and Community Transportation 
State Match

 $1,050 ($800 UGF/$250 MHTAAR) Coordinated 
Transportation

77



1/19/2016

3

Overview of FY 17 Budget Impact
Operating

Early Intervention/Infant Learning Programs (EI/ILP)

$10,041.7 ($1859.1 Fed, $758.1 I/A Rcpts, $7,425.5 GFMH 
 Serves Children 0-3 with developmental disabilities with a 

50% delay or more (25% in many other states)
 Provides specialized services for infants and toddlers to 

increase functional abilities
 This is a clean transfer of all EI/ILP funds from Office of 

Children’s Services (OCS) to Senior and Disability 
Services(SDS) to better align missions – No decrement.
o Many of the ILP programs are housed in DD agencies

 Potential for efficiencies in SDS grants management, reduced 
administrative costs and expanded revenue streams through 
targeted case management and Medicaid billing.

 High risk because of $7.4 M of GFMH, but federal 
Maintenance of Effort  (MOE) requirements could mitigate this

Overview of FY 17 Budget Impact
Operating

Community Developmental Disabilities Grants

$13,714.4 ($5,0004.1 UGF,$498.2 I/A Rcpts, $7,832.3 
GFMH, $300.0 MHTAAR)
 In FY 15, 26 agencies served 969 individuals at an average 

cost of $11,971 each. 
 Services include supported employment, respite care, care 

coordination, day habilitation, case management and 
specialized equipment.

 $300 K MHTAR is the DD Mini Grants transferred into this 
budget category.

 There was no additional decrement to this line item proposed 
by the Governor

 High risk line item because nearly all of it is GFMH and UGF 
funds. However, this is a area of future savings (FY 18 and 
beyond) if many of the services offered can be financed 
through 1915 I and K reform effort

78



1/19/2016

4

Overview of FY 17 Budget Impact
Operating

Governor’s Council on Disabilities and Special 
Education

$2,248.4 ($993.1 Fed, $355.9 I/A Rcpts, $272 GFMH, 
$627.4 MHTAAR)
 $100 K decrement in MHTARR from BEE initiative as 

Trust will direct fund some of the components listed in 
GCDSE budget

 $272 GFMH is $247 K is pass through to ILP program 
for professional development and $25 K for 
Microenterprise program

Legislative Priority

 Developmental Disability 
Registration and Review (Waitlist)
Restore draw back to 200/year vs 50 

proposed in budget
684 on DDRR as of 1/6/2016

• 24% are people with score of 0.
• 4 to 12 years old – 228.
• 13 to 21 years old – 209.
• Over 21– 247

Look at alternate ways to save money on 
HCBS services until reform efforts are done 
and in place

79



1/19/2016

5

Legislative Priority

 HB:77 Disability Training and ID
Could help protect officers, individuals with 

disabilities and the public through proper 
disability awareness training of all peace 
officers (Recent incident in Kodiak)

Voluntary placement of icon on ID for 
persons who have hidden disabilities or 
difficulty answering a police officers 
questions or demands.

Legislative Priority

 HB 188/ SB 104 Disability Savings 
Accounts (ABLE Act)
 Introduced last session by Rep. Saddler and 

Senator Giessel
Similar to 529 college savings account and 

provides certain eligible persons with 
disabilities the opportunity to save money 
and not lose public benefits

Bridge to employment and out of
poverty

80



1/19/2016

6

The Able Act is an 

Empowerment Tool:
The ABLE Act is a critical new tool to 
facilitate employment possibilities:
Allows saving above the Medicaid and 

Social Security (SSI) Resource Limits!!!

Save money earned without risking 
necessary public benefits that enable 
employment in the first place

Reduced reliance on government by 
allowing a better opportunity for personal 
saving

Am I eligible for an ABLE Account?

 Age of onset before turning 26
 SSI and/or SSDI = automatically eligible

 No SSI and/or SSDI = eligible if you meet SSI 
criteria of “significant functional limitations”

81



1/19/2016

7

Legislative Priority

 HB 76: Removal of “Gifted” reference 
from Council’s Enabling Statute
Old reference to days when we were the 

“Council on Handicapped and Gifted”
Gifted education programs are no longer an 

element of federal or state special education 
programs

Gifted and talented programs are 
responsibility of school districts as part of 
their General Ed programming requirements

Legislative Priority

 Also following these closely:
 HB 27/28: Foster Care 
 SB 78/HB 148: Medicaid Expansion and Reform  and 

all other Medicaid Related bills and budget 
discussions

 HB 154/SB 49: Civil Legal Services Appropriations
 HB 99: Voluntary Termination of Life 
 HB 85: Repealing College and Career Readiness 

Assessments
 HB 89: Graduation Requirements 
 SB 91: Omnibus Crime/Corrections Bill
 HB 102: Residential Psychiatric Education Funding 

82



1/19/2016

8

General Comments & 
GCDSE News

 Council Meeting Feb 2-4 in Juneau
 Inclusive Practice Award (SPED), Feb 12 in 

Anchorage (Hilton)
 Key Campaign, Feb. 18-19 in Juneau
 Full Lives Conference, March 30-31in Anchorage; 

also Direct Service Awards
 Our May 3-4 Council meeting will be video 

conferenced
 Wrapping up our new 5 year State Plan this spring
 Reuse of Durable medical Equipment and Assistive 

Technology –”Getting the band back together again”

 Working on expanding Project Search to one new site 
in Anchorage (Banking) and Juneau (state govt)

Questions

Patrick Reinhart
Executive Director

Governor’s Council on Disabilities & Special Education
3601 C Street, Suite 740
Anchorage, Alaska 99503

907-269-8994 Desk
907-301-0728 Cell

patrick.reinhart@alaska.gov

????????

83



 
 

Advisory Board on 
Alcoholism & Drug 

Abuse /  
Alaska Mental Health 

Board 
 
  
 
 

84



1/19/2016

1

WINTER UPDATE, 2016

FY16 BUDGET IMPACTS

85



1/19/2016

2

COMMUNITY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH GENERAL 
FUNDS

FLAT FUNDING IS REDUCED FUNDING

The aggregated FY15 budgets for community behavioral health, psychiatric emergency services, severe 
emotional disturbances, and serious mental illness made up the FY16 Behavioral Health Grants increment.

While the Legislature only reduced the combined Behavioral Health Grants general funds by $500,000 
(transferring those funds to the Division of Senior and Disability Services for adult day programs), the 
Department of Health and Social Services did reduce the line by $1,000,000 in dealing with the $2.2m 
unallocated reduction imposed by the Legislature.

FY17 PRIORITIES

86



1/19/2016

3

TOP PRIORITIES: BASIC NEEDS
1. Access to health care

Flat funding of methadone and other opiate abuse treatment impedes efforts to address the 
growth in heroin abuse, overdoses, and death

Source: Alaska Epidemiology Bulletin, July 14, 2015

TOP PRIORITIES: BASIC NEEDS
2. Access to safe, affordable, accessible housing

Community contributions help fill gaps caused by flat, reduced, and cut funding. 
New supportive housing efforts have not yet been maximized.
Advocacy re: FY2017 budget, local funding.
Support implementation of TAC Supportive Housing Plan 
recommendations in 2016.

87



1/19/2016

4

TOP PRIORITIES: BASIC NEEDS
3. Food Security

65% of Food Banks in MatSu saw increased client numbers (2014)
17,418 Senior Boxes (USDA, local donations) distributed in 2014
73,792 families received food through the Emergency Food 
Assistance Program (2014)
66% of food pantry, meal program clients expect to need these
on regular basis

“For many in entry level jobs or on limited incomes, drawing on
food programs allows them to pay for other necessities such as
housing and stabilize their families’ economic situation.” 
Source: Food Bank of Alaska 2014 Annual Report

TOP PRIORITIES: BASIC NEEDS
4. Public Assistance
• Alaska Temporary Assistance, Adult Public Assistance, Heating Assistance, Interim Assistance, 

Senior Benefits, etc.

2016 HAP eligibility 

 # of 
People
in Home

 
 Monthly
Gross
Income

   
 1   $2,758

 2   $3,735

 3   $4,710

 4   $5,683

Compare to Medicaid eligibility

$1,632-$2,454

$2,208-$3,220

$2,785-4,187

$3,361-5,054

88



1/19/2016

5

TOP PRIORITIES: BASIC NEEDS
4. Public Assistance
• Alaska Temporary Assistance, Adult Public Assistance, Heating Assistance, Interim Assistance, 

Senior Benefits, etc.

Source: Campaign for Home Energy Assistance, LIHEAP.org 

PROPOSED FY17 BUDGET

89



1/19/2016

6

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
Aggregate behavioral health grants (total funding) reduced by $5.7m (8%), attributed to 
Medicaid Expansion savings.

Funding for the API Advisory Board ($9,000) was eliminated, with intent language to eliminate 
the group. However, it continues to meet in 2016.

The proposed budget includes significant staffing changes, rearrangements.

MEDICAID
Increased federal authority -- $5.2m -- for Behavioral Health Medicaid (due to enhanced FMAP 
for Medicaid Expansion population) should offset the $3.3m reduction in general funds for 
Medicaid match.

Increased federal authority -- $6.3m – for Adult Dental offsets the $318k reduction in general 
funds.

The overall Medicaid Services budget is reduced by $29.3m (all funds), attributed to Medicaid 
Expansion and Reform savings.

90



1/19/2016

7

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE
All general funds for the Low Income Heating Assistance Program are eliminated.  It is $23.3m in 
FY16 – reduced 40% to $14.1m (federal funds only) in FY17.

Entitlement programs like TANF, SNAP, WIC, etc. are flat funded.

EDUCATION
The proposed operating budget anticipates an increase in the base student allocation.

Parents as Teachers, Pre-K, and Best Beginnings are all eliminated -- $2.82m general funds.

Broadband for Schools is reduced by $672k general funds.

WWAMI is flat funded for FY17.

91



1/19/2016

8

CORRECTIONS
Physical Health budget is reduced by $6m (16%), attributable to Medicaid Expansion. 

Mental Health, Substance Abuse, and Sex Offender treatment budgets are flat funded.

UNIVERSITY
The University System budget is reduced statewide by $15m+ in FY17.

The budget proposed lacks specific details of what will be curtailed in FY17, though it is 
reasonable to expect continued constriction of administrative support services and “teach out” of 
programs identified for merger or deletion in FY2014/2015. 

These include, at UAF, the Early Childhood Education Certificate and Dental Hygiene Associates 
Degree.

92



1/19/2016

9

PRE-FILED BILLS 2016

GOVERNOR’S BILLS (NOT FILED)
Alcohol Tax

This bill would increase all alcohol excise taxes 100%.  

Individual Income Tax

This bill would impose an individual income tax of 6% of the individual’s federal income tax obligation. I 
would apply to all income earned within the state. It would take effect January 1, 2017.

93



1/19/2016

10

ROUND 1
HB 219 – Rep. Hawker Medicaid
This bill requires annual reports from DHSS to the Legislature documenting the Expansion population 
served, general funds saved (for the year and cumulatively) as a result of covering these participants, and 
costs of covering these participants. This section sunsets in 2022.

It legislates a 90% FMAP circuit breaker for the Expansion population. It adds to the uncodified law a 
requirement that DHSS notify the Legislature if any of these events occurs: 
· The MMIS is not certified by the federal government;
· The FMAP for the Expansion population drops below the current ACA levels;
· Expansion enrollment exceeds DHSS estimates (listed in the bill); or
· General fund savings do not meet projections (listed in the bill).

ROUND 1
HB 224 – Rep. Hawker Revenue and Expenditure
This bill requires the Governor to, in addition to a budget, provide a projected end of fiscal year 
surplus/deficit to the Legislature during session. It provides for an “individual broad based tax” to be 
proposed by the Governor to make up any general fund deficit.

It lowers/changes how the amount of the Permanent Fund available for distribution as dividends is 
calculated, and caps the PFD at $2,000. It sets caps on the PFD based on the combined value of the 
Permanent Fund. 

It allows use of Permanent Fund earnings to balance the next year’s budget. It requires that unexpended 
and unobligated balances in the dividend fund be transferred to the CBR if there are CBR withdrawals 
outstanding; otherwise the balance goes to the SBR.

94



1/19/2016

11

ROUND 1
HB 227 – Rep. Seaton Medicaid
This bill establishes “prevention of disease as the primary model of health care in the state” for the 
Medicaid program. It mandates a primary care case management program, requires a super-utilizer 
managed care project in the uncodified law.

It changes the number of Medicaid providers that must be audited from .75% to not less than 50. It 
provides for collection of interest on overpayments from Medicaid providers. It adds civil penalties for 
Medicaid fraud/abuse.

It directs DHSS to pursue reform and cost containment. It requires pursuit of an 1115 waiver to expand 
services to IHS beneficiaries, the 1915(i) and 1915(k) state plan options, enhanced telemedicine, and 
other innovations. It also directs DHSS to apply for an 1115 waiver for innovative payment reform. It 
requires implementation of a global payment demonstration. 

It redefines behavioral health clinic services as those provided by state-approved CBHCs, physician clinics, 
etc. (no grant required). It does the same for behavioral health rehabilitative services.

ROUND 1
HB 234 – Vazquez Telehealth

This bill requires all health care insurers operating in Alaska to cover mental health benefits provided by 
telemedicine, and does not permit requiring an initial in-person encounter.

95



1/19/2016

12

ROUND 2
HB 237 – Rep. Seaton Physician Licenses
HB238 – Rep. Wool Physician Licenses

HB 237 and HB 238 each requires the state medical board to implement the Interstate Medical Licensure 
Compact, and requires physicians to provide fingerprints for a criminal background check. The Federation 
of State Medical Boards began developing multi-state practice/licensure guidelines in 2013.  Twelve 
states have enacted laws to implement the compact, with twelve more considering legislation to implement 
the compact.

J.  Kate Burkhar t ,  Execut ive Director
Alaska Mental  Heal th Board

Advisory Board on Alcoho l i sm and Drug Abuse
431 Nor th  Frank l in  St reet ,  Juneau,  Alaska 99801

kate.burkhar t@alaska.gov
Thank you!

QUESTIONS, COMMENTS?

96


	Trust Budget Process COMBINED- 100115.pdf
	Annual Mental Health Budget Bill Process w_description-032415.pdf
	Sheet1

	Trust Budget Process Diagram - 032415b.pdf
	Slide Number 1





